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~ _City of PoIk Clty o
Management’s Discussion and Analysns
September 30, 2009

- The Clty of Polk Cltys discussion and analy5|s (MD&A) is deS|gned to provrde an °
objectlve and easy {6 read anaiy3|s of the Clty s ﬁnancral aotlwtles

Since the Manhagement's Drsc_usswn a.nd Anaiysls is des-lgned. 1o foou;s-on the current'

‘year's actiyiti’es,_ resulting changes, and -qu_rrently kn'own. facts, please read it‘__in conjonc'tion- with

the City's financial statements and auditor’s report (beginning on Page 1).

UNDE‘RSTANDIN'_G THE BAS'IEC;:" FI'NANCIAL STATEMENTS
~ Government-wide Financial Statermnents
The govemment—wid‘e"ﬁr‘janoiatStatements (pjag_es é*-.4) ‘consist of a"Statemént' of N-et
Assets 'and.a -'Sltatiement' of Ac’tivitie‘s_. Bo'th. state.ments represerit" an overview of ‘the C_'tty as a
.whole’- Separat'fng its 'o‘perati'ons "'b/etween' -G'ovemrrrent'at and Business-type activities. "The
govemmental activities of the City- mclude general govemment Irbrary, law enforcement
,bundmg and zonlng, code enforcement streets, parks and recreatlon samtatlon and storm
\ water utility. The busmess—type activatles of the Clty con3|st of water and wastewater serwces
AII lnformatlon is presented uttllzlng the economic resource measurement focus and aocrual
_basis of accounting. . | |
-The Statement of Net Assets presents mformation on all the Cltys assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the. two reported as net assets. The focus of the Statement of Net
~ Assets (the “unrestricted net assets™} is’ deelgned to be similar to bottom I|ne reeults- for the C.ty
and its governmental and business-type activities. |
The Statement of  Activities presents intormation showing how the City's net assets
changed during the most recent fi scal year focusrng on both the gross and net cost of various
activities,. both governmental and busmess -type, that are supported by the governments

generai tax and other revenues.




| City of Polk City
Management’s Discussion and Analysis -
September 30, 2009

Fund Financiai .étatements
| The City; like other state and local governments uses- fund accounting fo ensure and -
demonstrate comphance W|th finance- related Iegal reqwrements All! the funds of the City can
he dnnded info: three categorles governmental funds, proprletary funds, and fi ducnary funds |
Tradition‘at u_se_rs of govemmerital finahcial‘s_t‘atements will find the fund ﬁna-n‘oial stateme_nts'
ofese.ntation' more familiar. |
Governmental Funds.
: ‘-.Govemmental-rfun/ds:_are used to account forr,ess‘e-ntialty the sarne fo,notions. reported as
‘goxfernmentai activities in the government-wide ﬁnanoial statement "HO‘Wevet un-i'ike the
govemment—w1de financial statements governmental fund fi nanc:|al statements focus on near—
term -inflows and" outﬂows of spendable resources, as weli as on balances of spendable
.resourc‘es_ available *at the end of the ﬁsoal yea-r. The basic .G_overnmental Fu-nds financial
 statements can be found on oagés 5-8. |
The City mai.ntai.ns orte‘g’ove'rnmentai tnnd - the Gen-erai _if.und. 'Information is prese"‘nted _
_kseparately‘fror each fund in the{glovern‘me'ntai fund Balance’ Sheet and the gerrnment'a.l fund
S'tateme_nt o_fk Revenue, Ex‘pen'ditures and Change ih_/ Funci_ Bala_n‘oes“for the General i:'und-.‘
i"roprietaw Funds. ‘

3 The City maintains only ong of the two proprietary fnnd types. Enterprise tunds are used
te report the same functions pre_sented as'busiﬁess—type activities in the .government-wide
ﬁnancﬁiai statements, oniy in t-nore detail. The Qity uses enterprise funds to account lfor its water
and wastewater activities. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be foundr on

pages 9-11 of this report.
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| City of Polk City
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
‘September 30, 2009

Notes to the financial statements. -
The notes provide -additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data prOvEded in-the 'goverhnment—-wide and fund financial st'ajements.. They can be found on

pages 12-26 of this report.

' GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Summary of Net Assets.
The following table. r‘eﬂects a su:rnn:i_ary' of Net Assets compared to prior-year. F'o:r mb.fe-
" detailed information ‘se'e"‘ the Statement of Ne{»As/sets‘On»;_'page 3. :
* Statemerit of Net Assets '('Sumnja ry)
. as of September-30, 2009

\ 3

Governmental Activities Biz';.si‘néss-'type Activities Total Primiary Government

S : 2008 2009 2008 L2009 - 2008 . 2009
Curentand otherassets  § 576,000 $ 341,058 $ 1,328,226 . § 347,538  § 1,904,316 § ' 688,501
Capitalassels 3,362,726 3,403,600 13,891.458 15,167,322 17,254,184 18,570,922
Tolal assets . § 3,038.816 § 3,744,653 . § 15,219,684 ' $ 15,514,860 ° $ 19,158,500 " $ 19,259,513
Long-term liabilities L T T T i ‘
outstanding K % 1,758,022 $° 1,741,443 $ 1,868,477 $ 9,478,058 § 3,626,499 § 11,219,501
Otherfiabilites 634,303 611,544 8,604,025 ~ 683,039 9,238,328 1,294,583 .
Total liabilities $, 2,392,325 § 2,352,087 $ 10,472,502 §$ 10,161,097 $ 12,864,827 §$ 12,514,084
Net assets: ' ' o : ' S
Invested in capital assets, S . : , o
net of related debt $ 1,654,529 '$ 1,727,029 § 4,863,923 § 5,680,727 § 6,518,452 $ 7,416,756
Restricted - 39,956 - 43,446 . 57,147 66,924 97,103 110,370
“Onrestricted (147,994)  (378,809) (173,888) ' (402,888) (321,882)  (781,697)
Total net assets $. 1546491 $§ 1,391,666 $ 4,747,182 $ 5,353,763 $ 6,293,673 § 6,745420

O\)e.r onée hu_ndfeu-:i percent of the City’s net assets reﬂé_ct its inve:st‘ment |n capital assets
(land, t?uildings, ifn_prov(a_ments, infrastructure, vehicie'g, and equipment) less any félated de_bt‘- '
‘uséd to acquire those assets that is still outstanc_j_iﬁg due fo the déﬁcit unrestricted net a\séets‘. ‘7
The City uses these- capital aéée{s to provide sérvices- to citizens; conéequently, these aséets
are not available | for future spéh'din'g. |
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\ City of Polk City
- Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2009

Alfhou.gh the City's ir‘westmen@ in its 'ca:pital' assets ﬂis repo}ted; net of related debt, it should lbel
noted -thatlthel r‘e'lsources -nee_dad to répé? this debt must be provided

from é.th‘ér sources, since the Cépit'a[ uas'sé_ts_ t_h,ems:el_ves- cann(;)_t be used to I'iquidate_- thes’e
fiabites. | S | ‘7
Three percent df th‘é City’s net zla_s.sets' represent fe.éour_c’es that are éubjept 1o extérnél'
" restrictions on how they may be uséd whiéh .is’ .thé same as the prior ye'ar.\;‘ The remaining
balance of unrestricted r%e_t‘ assets is normally available;- to meet the City's ongoing .ob'ligétions to\'
_ citizens and crédi;oré.:but'the "bala{nce is a deficit of '($’3_78,809) or “-.'2"7%_ of‘net‘aé;séts. This
r.epres.e.nfs_ a increase in-the déﬁcit kof'approxi_/mately 1 56-% from 2008. The city has inv‘es_te‘d'
cdn's‘i'derable 's‘gi‘ns in capita_l" a'::ssets and-fhe_ mai_iﬁteﬁa_né:e_:of utherﬁ during the ;;réviquS year,
how_ever Qo'rrect‘ions‘;are now in place to r’efbt‘}i\ld !the city'’s rese'r&es, and p!gé_‘t;e the city in étrOngér

financial footing. -
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City of Polk City
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2009

Statement of Activities
" The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Activities for the current and -
previous year. For mdre'-detailed infdrma_tion'see the Stateément of Activ,itiesdon page 4,

Statement of Activities (Summary)
For the year ended September 30, 2009

. Gover-nr_nent"a'l Activities’ Bu'skine'ss,-type Activiies  Total Primary Government
e B s 200 o 2008
Ravenues: ' ' T o ’ ’ '
" Program Revenues? : _ . ‘
‘Charges for services ' . 502472° 32,757 735,797 . 1,208,178 1228219 . 1,518835
~Overating grants and e R =il 1i
contributions” . S 1,008 . 27067 - 73044 1,008 10171
Capital grants and contributions * . © 424,421 90506 . 4203997 . 858,267 . 4628418 948,773
General revenues: R . S ) O s -
Property taxes. . 550240 600972 - - - 550240 . - 600,972
Franchise/Public Ser. Tax . 295601 314,163 I « 295801 @ 314,163
" State shared revenues o 155401 160,757 e R 155,401 160,757
Fugltaxes - e @83t . . - - eZEd
Other - . 24313 - 33285 . 80548 - 1256 - 101,861 34,541
Total ravenuss T 1950406, 1633038 5010342, 2139645 6,960,748 3772683
BExpénses: - - I R o o S B
_ General government 824907 . 789,645 .- ‘ - 824,907 789,645
Liorary © . - 762452 . 109416 - - 62452 109416
Folice o i 278,709 - . 310,188 . - - | 278,709 310,188
Buidingandzoning = . 54,109 85075 . - - - . 54109 85075
Code Enforcement . 37,046 - T 4293 L = 1046 42934
Sanitation - ‘ C T 182652 179,086 - - R 182,652 {79,086
Strests ) o 282605 . 258787 - - .- 282,605 258,787
‘Parks and recreation 22978 C . 4DM48T ER e . 22978 40,487
Stornw ater . 1,891 1,891 e - 1891 71,891
Interest onlong-termdebt " 89,436 "~ 70354 - © - - 89436 70,354
Fublic utiities - * _ ' R - T 1,144,868 1433064 1144868 1,433,064
Total expenses : 1.836,785° 1,887,863 1144868 1433064 2,981,853 3,320,927
hcrease (decrease) in net assels : ) . - - o
befare transfers _ 113621 (254,825) 3,865,474 706,581 3,979,095 451,756
Transfers - 750000 100,000 {75,000) (100,000) o -
- _ - - :
Fhicrease {decrease) in net assets. 188,621  (154,825) 3,790,474 . 606,581 3,979,005 451,756
Net assets - October 1 1357870 ° ° 1,546,491 956,708 ~ 4747182 2314578 6,293,673
Nel assets - Septerber 30 " 1546491 1,391,666 4,747,182 5,353,763 6,293,673 6,745:429
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, City of Polk City -
Management’s Dlscussmn and Analys1s
September 30, 2009

Governmenta[ actlvrtles _

Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by $154 825 after a transfer of
-$100,000 from the busmess—type actlv:tles In the pr!or year, net assets mcreased by $188 621
after a $75 000 transfer from busmess—type aCtIVItIeS _Total expenses mcreased by $51,078 or
approxrmately 3%. The cause -of this increase was due to general mcreases due to workload‘
“ _ redu_irenients' or cont-ra_'c'tual obligations. |
Bus,iness-typ.e iae’tiviti_es

Business-type activities increased the City's net, assets by $4‘6'06;,_.‘_581 compared to an‘
increase ot -$f3. 865, 474-in .ttie_ prior ye‘ar. Th_ere" was\’_,a‘ -$1{)0,0.t)'0 'tra'&nsfer l'o‘f f.'un'ds to s,upport , '-
governmental actlvmes | | ' |

. | There were S|gn|f|cant |mprovements and expans:ons to the utlllty systems
"« The City contlnued construction of a wastewater treatment plant.

o Inthe prior year the Clty received capital contrlbutlons totaling $4 203 997 due to
donatlons of mfrastructure from Polk County and developers ,

) ‘ FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earller the Clty uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compllance
‘Wlth flnance related Iegal reqmrements : “
: Govemmenta! Funds

‘As of September 30, 2009 the Cltys governmental funds. reported combined endmg.
fdnd balances deficit _of ($264¢728) which ¢an beé found on page 5‘. This is up from ($52,341)
last year. Approximately ($478‘,1'.80) constitutes. unreserved fund balance deficit, which is an
‘-increas'e in the deficit of ($376,788) from IaSt,YGar, and is not available for spending. Because
the total fund balance of tne governmental funds is a deficit, t'here’ is no a-_rnount available for

appropriation in subsequent years.




City of Polk City
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
September 30, 2009

In the General F‘ued, the City’s eXpe_nditures exceéded its revenues by $323,721. The |
cause of this deﬁciency ‘ef revenues over e);penFJi{uree is as follows. |
¢« The Clty u':nder budgeted th“e. e'xpen__ditures re_!ated to the law eﬁfercem'ent contract ‘wit’-h--
the Polk Cohnt&(*Sheriﬁ‘S_ 'ofﬁce,by(over $100,000 |
‘ Operatiqnal costs were u;n"der bi'udg’k_eted_in FY09
« Expected revenue received was less than the forecasted emount_
» Debtservice expenditgres were :g‘rea_ter than an’;}iciﬁatec\:i

Feor further a‘na_lysié, the budgeta'w cofhbari's’qn ,schedule is presented on pages 27.

Propnetary Funds

These semces combined to generate oeeratlng mcome of $127, 578 Compare that to -
‘ th_e: prl_or‘:year ope'ratlng loss of $111,842. As stated elsewhere |n_ thls report, the c:tty has
expe'n'aéd s;i:gniﬁcjant- reeo.urees-to- e;(p"aifl'd\ the C|tys infra'struc;'ti.lre,_to position’ itself "f-or future

growth.’

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFI'CANT,.BUDG'ET--V_ARIANCES‘ .
The City adopts_an annual apprberi'ated b‘udget each year in September: B.udgetéry
comparison statements have been prowded fo demonstrate comphance with the budget (page’

27}, Budget comparisoh reportlng is included for the General Fund.




. City of Polk City
Management’s Disqussi_en_‘a_nd Analysis
September 30, 2009

GAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
 Capital Assets. o ’
The investrﬁent-in‘ capital assets includes land, buildings, irﬁprovefnénts,_ i_hfrastr"ucture,
| veh"icl'es, la‘nd .eqluip'mejnt. The Cityj elected to record and depreciate its infrastructure, rather
than use the optidnai “modiﬁed ap'pi‘oach”.- |
| The fojloﬁviné table ‘pr:esern.ts a comparison of the capital assets for the current and
‘previous yeéi‘-; |

4

Capital Assets Activity - ‘
{net of depreciation). ‘
as of September'30, 2009

Governmental Activities  Businessiype Activities Total Primary Goveriment

o SR 2008 2009 © - 2008 2009 . 2008 . 2009
‘Assets not depraciated ) ) : : . - ' o
* Land o 412,543 412,543 4,027,000 1,868,587 1,439,543 2,281,130
Censtruction in progress . Agii8 . 188,019 3,456,480 4,080,890 3,505,508 . 4,277,009
, Total ' ' 461,661 . 598,562 4,483,480 5959577 4,945,141 6,558,139
Depreciated Assets - . o R : : C- o
Buildings and improvements - 2672166 2,672,166 o ’ - 2,672,166 2,672,166
Recreational facilities , 242,444 272,916 - , 242 444 272,916
Vehicles @nd equipment 369,885 372,890 158,327 - 227,567 . 528212 - 600,457
Infrastructure . 187,478 - 187,478 - .- 187,478 187,478 °
* Utility plants: ‘ . - L 9,834,466 = 9,834,466 9,834,466 9,834,466
Subtotal , T 3,471,973 . 3,505,450 9,992,793 10,062,033 13,464,766 13,567,483
Accumulated depreciation . (570,908)  {700.412) (584,815) (888,100)  (1,155,723) _ (1,588,521)
Total- : ' 2,901,065 = 2,805,038 6,407,978 = 9,173,924 12,309,043 11,978,962

The .City’-s" i_nvestment in capital assets for its gowvernm_'e‘nta! and bu’s-i-n'ess-.type activities
as of September 30 2009, a‘mounts,tb $18,537,101 {net of accumulated depre-éi’gtio:n;)cﬁmpared
to $j 7‘,254,184 .Iast year. That is an i-ﬁcreaée of $1,282,817 from the prior year. As stated
throughout this report the ‘c;ity has invested significant resources into capital assets.and

expansions to accommodate the current and planned growth.
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Clty of Polk Clty
' Management’s Discussion and Analy51s
- September 30, 2009

S,i'gniﬁcalnt investm’ents in capita‘t assets for .2009 are as fellot\rs:
» Planning and des:gn for the new Regional MBR Wastewater Treatment Plant. -
e Land purchased for the new Regional MBR Wastewater Treatment Plant
Addltlonal mformatlon on the City’s caprtai assets can be found In Note 6 on pages 19- -
20 of the_ Notes to the Financial Statements in this report. |

Long-term debt

The foIIowmg table presents a comparlson of revenue bonds and notes payable fer the current

and prevrous year.

_ Revenue Notes and Notes Payable
as of September 30, 2009

T ' _ Govemmental Actmtres Busmeas—type Actuntles Toftal anary Government

« 2008 2009 2008 . 2009 © 2008 - 2009
_Rewnue notes - $ © g7 . $5.681.800 $5.658,500 § 5,681,800 . § 5,658,500
Notes payable B . $1,708,197 $1,676,571 $2,920,615 $3,819,005 § 4,628,812 §$ 5,495,666
Total - . - C - $1,708197  $1,676,571 < $8,602,415° $9,477,595 $10,310,612  $11,154,166

At the end of the current fiscal year, the’ Gevernme‘.ritat Activities -had total debt
} outsta_‘ndi}ng of ‘$1,741,443 of which $64,872 pertains to compensated a‘_bs.ence_s. This.
compares te $49,825in the prior year. '

As shown in Note 7, beg_inning on page 21, the BuSiness-type Activities nad total cteb_t'
outstanding of $9,478-,058- whictt- consists primarily of the Water Bond Series 2004;. Sewer
Bends. Series 1999, Water and Sewer Bond Series 2005 andthe installment loans from Florida
Depart'rnent of Environmental P-roteetion and Polk Cb‘unty. For additionat info.rmatiOn, see Note

- 7, page 21.
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. City of Polk City
Management’s Discussion-and Analysis
September 30, 2009

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS AND CONDITIONS |

The“- pEan.ninQ énd design.for the regi_éna]* 1.5 mgd Waé_ﬁewater Trg’atmént Plant was (':om.pléted‘

in 2009. - However, the expected grchth of the'VCity 6_f Polk City slbwgd signiﬁcahﬂy c:au-'sing_'the .

' planneid"vléegikohaf Wéstewéter‘Treatn'.l‘ent Plant execution td ‘be ‘putén hold in 2009. D,ecrea'sggs

" in operating exﬁenses_ were e;(e'crl:fted 7inc’lud,iﬁg reducing staff hohur's from 40 hdu'rs;fwee‘k_ to 36
holrs/week. The Fiscal Yeér 2008 audit showed that the cny of Polk City owed Polk County

impact fees amﬁunﬁ_n__g to $5_$1_‘;00.0 and this 'fs_':curre-ntly -t;ieing addressed. The Ctty of F’ol!_(_ City

defauited on the first loan payment to Polk County for §1 75,000 for the Mount Olive spréy field

and:-ribs 'pr_oberties due to lack of funds..

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
' : This financial report is _C!ESi'gned to p}ovidé qur citizéns, taxAp_'alyeré', c_us—tqmerg;-, investors ”
' _anq creditors with a'g_eniefa'l overview of the City of Polk City's finances and to dem.onrstréte the -
"C'ity’s. accOurité‘biiity_‘ for the money it receives. L you' have any questions about t‘vhis report or
‘ need :.adq_ftional‘ financial -iln'fc}}‘r'ﬁjation,“‘f)lease cont"éct the CitY'Of PO"‘- City, 123 Blfoa_dﬁway

Boulevard SE, Polk City, FL 33868 or call 863-984-1375.
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D rynjulfson CPA, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT.

'Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Councrl
Clty of Polk Crty, Fiorlda

We have audited the accompanyrng f nanc:al statements of the govemmemal activities, the busmess—type
-activities and each major fund of City of Polk City, Florida as of and for the year ended September 30,
2009, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
‘These financial statements are the responsrbllrty of City of Polk City, Flonda 's management. - Our
respon3|bllrty is to express an oplmon on these ﬁnanmat staternents based on our audlt - :

We conducted our audlt in accordance W|th auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards apphcable to. financial audlts contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United- States. . Those standards require that we plan and -
perform the audit to obtairi reasonab!e assurance- about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit inclides examining, on a. test basis, evidence supportrng the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An:audit also inclides assessing the accounting pnnmples :
used ‘and significant estimates made by management as well as' evaluating the overall financial
_staterent presentatron We believe that our audit provrdes a reasonable basis for our OmeOI'I

In our epinion, the ﬁnancral statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type actrvltles ‘and each major

- fund ofthe City of Polk City, Florida as of September 30, 2009, and the respective changes'in financial
positior and cash flows, where appllcabie thereof for the year then ended in confon'nrty with accounting
principles generally aocepted in the United States of America. :

" In accordance with’ Govemment Audrtmg Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 27, 2010
on our consideration of City of Polk. City, Florida's intemal control structure over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with. certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts-and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that repott is to describe th”e,sco_p_e of gur testing of intemal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, .and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting ‘or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in. eonjunctlon with this
report in considering the resulis of our audit. :

100 South Kentucky Avenue, Suite 275 Phone: (800) 368-3959  Fax: (863) 583-0872
Lakeland, FL 33801 Email: mdb@mdbcpas.com



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

'(cpnt;...)‘ 4

The management’s discusswn and anaIyS|s and the budgetary oompanson schedule on pages M1
through M10 and page 27, respectively, are not a required part of the basic ﬁnancnal ‘statements but are
supplementary ‘information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. We have applied certain fimited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentatlon of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the informiation and express no oprnron onit.

Cur audlt was conducted for the purpose of forming oplmons on the financial statements that
“collectively comprise the City of Polk City, Florida's basic fi nancial statements. The
- accompanying schedule of expenditures of -federal awards and state fi nancial assistance is

present for" purposes of additional analysis ‘as:required - by the U.S. Offi ce of Management and

Budget Circular. A-1 33, Audits of States, Local Governments; and Non—Prof"t Orgamzat:ons

Section 218.97, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, and is not a

required part of theé basic financial statements. Such information. has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial stateménts and, in our opinion, is
) falrly stated |n all material respects in relatlon to the basic ﬁnanma! statements taken as a whole.

VYAJVM | C',PAJ P A

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.°
Lakeland, Florida . _
Cduly 27,2010 o ‘ , : .




CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

. AS/ 0F SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

ASSETS .
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, current: )
Customer accounts, net
Intergovernmental )
Franchise and public service taxes
Internal bafances
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Capltal assets:
Non-depreciable
-Depreciable, net
: Deferred charges
Unamortized bond i issue costs:
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABIL[TIES _
‘Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable :
~ Due fo other governments.
Deferred revenue ’
Custemer deposits
~_ Long-term liabilities:
Due.within ohe year
Due in more than one year

. TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Invested in capda! assets net of related debt

" Restricted for:

. Building code enforcement
Transportation snfrastru_ctu_re
Debt service

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Primary Government

"Governmental - Business-type . . .
“Activities _ Activities' : _Totel'r
$ 1407 § 223992 § 238,099
40,101 98,456 138,557
44,524 - 44,524
28,868 - 28,868
169,155 (169,155) -
43,447 194,127 237,574
598,562 5,959,577 6,558,139
2,805,038 9,173,924 11,978,962.
851 © 118 -969
. 33,821 33821
| 3,744,653 15,514,860 19,259,513 -
1§ 53743 § . 2053 ' 83279
15,208 '2,155 17,453
5,763 230,396 236,159
536,740 . 536,740
- 299,310 299,310
- 121,642 121,642
71,817 . 424,609 - - 496,426
- 1,669,626 © 9,053,449 10,723, 075
2,352,987 | 10 161,007 12,514,084
1,727,029 5,689,727 7,416,756
5,404 - 5,404
© 27,477 . - 27,477
10,565 66,924 77,489
~ (378,809) (402,888) _ (781,697) -
$ 1,391,666 $ 5353763 § 6,745429

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30 2009

General
_ - Furnd
ASSETS :
Cash and cash equivalents -~ . o $ . 14,107
Re&ceivables, net: : . ) L
Customer aceounts, net . L ' 40,101
Intergovernmental . 44,524
Franchise and public service taxes o ' : 28,868 -
" Due from other funds | 169,155
Restricted assets! ) ' ' .
- Cash and cash equivalents = ‘ < 43,447
Deferred charges . o i 851
TOTAL ASSETS SR ‘ '$ - 341,053
LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCE . B
Accounts payable o o - $ 53, 743
" Accrued payroll - - - - o 15 298‘
- Due to-other governments o , _ '53_,,6‘ 740
TOTAL LIABILITIES S ‘ 605,781
FUND BALANCE: o I
Reserved for: , .
Deferred charges - e 851
Due from other funds CoL | o . 169,155
' Building code enforcement o 5,404
Transportat:on lnfrastructure o . . 27477
. Debt service = : o - . - 10,565
Unreserved - : ' . {478,180)
TOTAL FUND BALANCE , T (264,728)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FU N_D ‘BALANCE $ 341,053

See Accomipanying Notes to Financial Statements
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‘CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - _

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30 2009

FUND BALANCES TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ‘ , | $

Amounts reported for govemmental actlvrtles ini the statement of net assets

are different because: .
Caprtal assets used in govemmental activities are not current financial fesources,
and therefore are not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance- Sheet '

'!nterest payable on Iong-term debt does not require current financial resources.
" Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a !labllrty in governmental funds.

Long-term habllltres (mcludlng compensated absences)
-are not due and payable in:the current pened and therefore they are not reported
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. :

(264,728) .

3,403,600

(5,763)

(1,741,443)

NET ASSETS OF GOVE-_RNMENTA_L ACTIVITIES | o _ %

1,391,666

See Aceompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA o

STATEMENT OF REVEN.UE:.S, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
for the year ended September 30, 2009 .

fGen_eraI

Fund = -
-REVENUES L ‘ ) L .
Taxes ‘ ‘ .. § 1,043,556 -
Licenses and permits . o 25,0688
Intergovernmental révenue - 270,655
Charges for services T 242,654 .
Fines and forfeitures : - 3,404
- Otheér - . : 36,367
. Totalrevenues - 1,621,704
EXPENDITURES: . , , o
. General government - 765,128
Public safety . : : 352,719
Physical environment . ‘ s - 179,086
: Transportatlon & 245,204
Culturelrecreatlon . : o 107,883
Debt service . o ' 193,316
Capltal outlay - - ‘ 102,089
Total expenditures ‘ . 1,945425
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES ' o
. OVER EXPENDITURES ‘ o (3_-2_3,_721)
'_OTHER FINANC!NG SOURCES (USES) o o _
Impact fees - : ‘ - - 11,334
Transfers in - - _ I 100,000
Total-other fmancmg sources ‘ , ‘ 111,334
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (212,387) -
FUND-BALANCE, beginning of year _ (52,341)
FUND BALANCE, end of year $ _ (264728)

See Accompany_i'ng Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA

_RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES
'AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - '"GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ‘ '

_FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2009 ’

4 NET CHANGE IN.FUND BALANCES TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ (21-2,387)

'Amounts reported for governmental actnntles in the statement of activities are
. different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expendltures ‘"However; in
the governmentuwzde statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over thelr estimated useful lives as deprematlon expense

Thls. is th_e amount of capltal assets addlttons in the curren-t_ period _ A 1:7’0;3_7:8
This is the amount of depreciafion recorded in the.current pe'ridd ‘ ©(129,504)

‘Long-term obligations :nclud:ng bonds and notes payable and
compensated absences are reported as liabilities in the. govemment-WIde

_statement of activities but are not reported as liabilities in the -

" governmental funds because they do not requ1re the use of current
financial resourcés: :

This amount represents Iong-term debt repayments B * T 31,626

This arount represents the change in accrued interést payable = : 109

ThIS amount represents the charige in compensated absence Ilablllty o ) (15,-0742.)7
' -CHAN'.GE{ IN NET AS-SETS'OF GOVERNMENTAL A-CTIVITIES ) ©$ (154,825)

See Accom panying"Notes to Firiancial Statements
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-CITY OF POLK CITY; FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES -
_AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

. Busmess Type Actlwties Enterpnse Funds '

Water Sewer
. Fuand Fund " Total
ASSETS
Current Asséts: ) : _
 Cash and cash equiVaIent's: $ ‘221,487 $ 2,505 $ 223,992 .
Customer accounts receivable, net 58,309 . 40,147 08,456
_Due from water fund s . 71,346 . 71.348
Total current assets 279,796 - 113,008 393,794
Noncurrent assets: - s R '
' Restricted assets: o ) - _
Caish and cash equwalents : 160,628 33,499 . 194,127
Capital assets, net: ' P _ . T
Non-depreciable = 5,959.577 5,859,577
Depreciable, net 3,316,671 5,857,253 9,173,924
Deferred charges 118 . - 118~
Unamortized bond issue costs © 94,752 0,069 33,821
. Total noncurrent assets . 3,502,169 11,859,398 . 15,361,567
TOTAL ASSETS 3,781,965 11,973,396 15,755,361
LIABILITIES.
Current liabilities: .
Accounts payable 14, 590 ) 14,946 29,536 -
~ Accrued payrolk : 2,155. o 2,155
Bonds. and notes payable, curfent portion 48,771 375,838 424,609
Accrued intereét payable “ 8,877 221,519 230,396
Deferred revenues 58,785 . 242,525 299,310
Due to sewer fund 71,346 - 71,346
Due to general fund 32,496 136,659 169,155
Total current liabilities 235,020 991,487 1,226,507
Noncurrent liabilities: ' A
Customer deposits 121,642 ' : — 121,642
Compensated absences _ 463 ' - 463
Bonds and notés payable, noncurrerrt portion 1,624,604 . . 7,428,382 | 9,052,986
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,746,709 7,428,382 - 9,175,001
TOTAL LIABILITIES : 1,981,729 8,419,869 " 10,401,598
NET ASSETS . -
nvested in capital assets, net of related debth 1,668,048 4,021,679 - 5,689,727
Restricted for: 1
Debt service 35,304 31,620 66,924
Unrestricted , | 96,884 (499,772) (402,888)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 1,800,236 $ 3,553,527 $- 5,353,763

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

9 .



ciTY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY F UNDS

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

. Total operating fevenues
OPERATING EXPENSE-S:
_ Personal services
Operating expsenses
Depréciafiqn‘
Total operating expenses
- OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest reVenue . .

Interest expense |
Other nonoperatmg revenue

Total nonoperatmg revenues: (expenses)
income (loss) befora contnbut:ons

CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
‘State grant -
lmpact fees

Total capltal grants and contributioris
TRANSFERS IN (OUT)

Changg'i in net assets ) )
TOTAL NET ASSETS - beginning of year
TOTAL NET ASSETS -end of year -~ .

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
10

Busmess Type Actuntles Enterpr:se Funds _

1,800,236

" Water Sewer
" .. Fund Fund Total
$ 736815  § 460363  § .. 1,206178
736, 815 " 469,363 1,206,178
85,063 - 85,063
307,032 383,211 690,243
114,525 . 188,769 303,294
506,620 - 571,980 1,078,600
230,195 - {102,617} 127,578
250 1,008 1,256
- (56,426} . (298,038) © {354,484)
C- T 73,944 - 73,044
(56,176) (223,088) (279 264).
174,019 (325,705) (151,686)
- . 836,287 836,287
8,735 13,245 21,980
8735 ©* 849,532 ‘ 858,267
{100,000} - _{100,000)
- 82,754 523,827 606,581
1,717,482 3,029,700 4,747,183
$ $ 3553527 § . 5353763




CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

: CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING. ACTIVITIES
Receipts from.customers -
Payments fo suppliers |
Payments for salaries and benefits
Net cash flows from operating actlvmes

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANC!NG ACTIVETIES
Increase {decrease) in customer deposrts
" Increase {decrsase) in due to (from) other funds
Transfers (to) from.other funds
Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acqursrtlon and constructlon of capital assets,, net of related payablées
. Capital contributions neoewed
State grant proceéds
Bond proceeds, net of costs
Pnncrpal paid on notes; bonds and Iease obhgatlons
Interest paid on borrowings
) Net cash. flows from capltal and related ﬁnancmg actrvrtues
“CASH FLOWS FROM INVES'HNG ACTIVITIES
Interest on-investéd funds ‘
Net'cash ﬂow's from. |nves’ung actiwtles .
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH- EQUIVALENTS

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS begmmng of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS end of year -

;

Recongciliation of operatm_g income (Ipss) to net cash
provided (used), by operating activities:

QOperating income (loss).

- Adjustments to recongile: operatmg mcome to et
cash prowded by operatmg act[wtles
Deprecnat:on .

" {Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
{Increase) decrease in deferred gharges:
Increase. (decrease) in.accolints payabie
Increase (decrease) in-cofnpensated abserices
ingrease (decréase) in acérued payroll
Non-cash lease expense

" Nok-cash bond cost amortization

Net cash flows from: operating activitiss

Noricash 'financ’ingx and investing activities;

Business Type Activities - Enterprlse Funds

See Accompanying Neotes o Financial Statements

11

Water Sewer .
Fund: _Fund . Totza'lr

$ TEIATA § .- 501,611 $ 1,258‘.785

© O {301,379) - {310.634) (612,013)
: {86,153) : - (86,153) .
368,642 190,977 + 560,619

19.671 - 19,671
8,904 10,320 , 19,224
{100;000) - - {100,000)
" (71:425). 10,320 (61,105)
(32,235) ¢1,078,855) {2.012,000) -
8,735 13,245 © 21,980 ,
L © 239,809 - 239,899
33,235 871,262 904,437
(17.860) (11,397 (29,257)
{58.634) (188,160) (246,794)
" (67.759) . (1,054,066) (1,121,826)
250 1,006 1,256 -
250 1,006 . 1286
" 230,708 . (851,768) " (621,085)

. 181,407 887,767 . 1039174
$. . 382115 § 36,004 3 . 418119
§ - Za195  §  (102617) § 127578

114,525 188,769 303,204
20,359 32,248, 52,607
3,269 6,387 9656

(1,344 (8:452) {9.796)

{1,147} co- (1,147)

57 - 57

‘ - 73,944 . 73,944

. 728 . 698 1,426

$ 366642 - $ 190,977 $ _ 557819

% - $. = $ -




CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Septerber 30, 2009

'NOTE 1- squAnY OF SIGNIFICANT AccouNTlNG _POLI'CIES

The . Cltys t" nanCIaI statements are pfepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), The Governmental Accountmg Standards Board (GASB) is. responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its Statements and Interpretations.
Govemments aré also required. fo follow the pronouncements of the Finarcial Accounting
Standards Board (FASBY) issued through Novemiber 30, 1989 for its business-type. activiies funds

‘ that do riot conflict with orcontradict GASB pronouncements Although the City has the option to
apply. FASB proncuncements issued after that date to its busmess—type activities’ (enterpr:se
funds) the City has chosen not to do so. The more significant aocountmg pohcues established in.
GAAP and used by the City are discussed below. =~

A REPDRT!NG ENTITY

The; Clty of Polk C|ty Flonda isa polltlcai subdivision of the State of Flonda created in 1925 by
Chapter 11016, Laiws of the State.of Florida. The City operates under a counc:llmanager form of
“municipal goveriiment and prowdes general municipal services, including public safety, publlc ,
works, culture, recreation, community development,. ‘and water and sewer services.. These
ﬁnanr:tal statements inciude all of the funds, organizations, agencies, departments. and- account
-groups of the City (the "primary government”) and any "legally" separate entities ("component
© units"} required by generaliy accepted accountlng pnnmples to be mcluded it the reportlng entity.

' The accompanying financial statements present the City's pnmary govemment and component '

units over which the City exercises significant influence. Significant influence or accountability is
' based primarily on operational or financial relatlonshlps with the City (as distinct from - legal
* relationships). Certain component units, afthough Iegally Separate, are presented in the financial
statements. as "blended” components Blendmg refers to the fact that the component unit's funds
and’ account groups are combined with those of the primary government for financial reporting
purposes. Therg.are no entities that meeét the, cntena for mclusnon as either blended or dlscreetly
presented component units. .

B. BAS]C FINANC,IAL _STA'I?EME'NTS.

The basic financial statements consist of the government—wrde t" nanmal statemenits and fund
financial statements: . ,

: Government-wnde Financial Statements The required govemment-mde financial statements
are the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, which report. information on all of
the nonfiduciary activities of the City. The effects of interfund activity have been removed from
these statements. The City has no fiduciary funds, however if it did-they would be excluded from
the government-wide financial statements since by definition these assets are bemg held for the
benefit of a third party and cannot be used to fund activities or-obligations of the’ govermnment.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported .separately from Business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
- and charges for support. .
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CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.September 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont...).

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the. degree to which the direct expenses of @ given
function or segment are offset by program revenues Direct expénses are those that are clearly
identifidble with a specific. function of segment, including depreciation. The City does not allocate
the interest expénse’ of governmental fund debt or indirect costs such as finance, personnel
legal, etc. Program revenués include-1) charges to customers or apphcants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from’ goods services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and

2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements
of a particular furiction or segment. Taxes and other |tems not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as.general revenues .

Fund Flnanclal Statements - The fi nanmal transactlons of the City are recorded in ‘individual
funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self balanclng accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expendltureslexpenses The empha5|s
in fund financial statements is on the ‘major funds in elther the governmental or business-fype:
activities categones ‘Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund. financial stafements. GASB No. 34 sets forth
minimum criteria {percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or expendltureslexpenses of
either fund category.or the govemmental and enterpnse combined) for the determination of major
funds. Non~major funds by category are summarized.into a single column Due to the City's fund
o structure, there were no non- major funds. The various funds are reported by. type W|th|n the,
) ﬁnancral statements S . =

The- f.ollo_Wihg‘ fund types and funds are us'ed and reported by the City:

a) Govemmenta! Funds The focus of the governmiental fund's measurement (in the fund
. statements) is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position
(sources, uses, and balancés of financial resources) rathér.than upon net inceme. The
followmg is3 descnptlon of the governmental funds of the Crty ‘

. General Fund is the general operatmg fund of the City. It is used to. account for all
financial resources except those requlred to be accounted for in another fund.

b) Proprietary’ Funds: The focus of the proprietary. fund's - measurement i “upon
determination of operating income, changes in riet assets, financial position, and cash
flows. The generally accepted accounting principles ‘applicable are- those similar to
busmesses in the private sector The following is a descnpt;on of the propnetary funds of
the City:

* Enterprise:Funds - are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity {a) is financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requiréments
that the cost of providing services, mciudlng capital costs, be recovered with fees and
charges, or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to
recover similar costs The City has the fotiowrng Enterpnse Funds: .

= Water Fund is used to account for the operations associated with potable water
supply, treatment, transmission and distribution services to area residents.

= Sewer Fund is used to account for the operatlons assomated with sewer collectlon
treatment and disposal services for area résidents.
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
‘September 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont...)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

- Thé govemment:wide  financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses afe recorded when a liability -is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows..Property taxes are recognlzed as revenues in the.
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
) elrgtbuhty reqwrements imposed by the provider have been met: :

Operatmg revenues shown for propnetary operations generally result from-producing or providing
-goods and services such as water and sewer. Operatmg expenses for these operations include.
all costs related to provadmg the service or product. These costs include billing and: collection,
personnel and purchased services,- repairs and maintenance, depremataon matenals and
: supplies and other expenses dlrectly related fo costs of services. ‘

All other [revenue, and expenses ‘not. meeting these definlt[ons are. reported as nonoperating
X revenues and expenses : : -

Governmental fund fmancual statements -are reported using the current ﬁnanc;al resources
measurement focus and the modified accrisal basis of accountmg Revenues. are recognized as-
soon as they are both measurable and-available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they dre collectible within 60 days of the. end of the current fiscal period. Expendltures generally -
are_recorded when a ligbility is incurred, as under accrual acceunting. However; debt service
expendltures as well.ds. expenditures reiated to claims and ;udgments are recorded onIy when ‘

paymernit is due f

Prop.erty taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to acerual as revenue of the current period.’ Grant revenugs are
considered earned and are accrued simultaneously with the grant expenditure. In applying the
susceptlblllty -to-accrual concept fo mtergovemmental revenues, the legal and contractual
. réquirements of the numerous mdlv:dual programs are used as gmdance There are, however,
essentially two types of these revenues. In one, manies must be expended for the specific
purpose -or. project . before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are’
recognized based upon the expenditures recarded. In the other, monies are. virtually unrestricted '
as to purpose of experidituré and substantially irrévocable; i.e. revocable only for failure to comply
with prescnbed compltance requirements. These reésources are reflected as revenues at the time
of receipt or earlier if they meet the availability criteria. All other revenue: items are con5|dered to
bé measurable and available only when cash is recelved by the gavernment.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS.OR EQUITY

: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Includes all short-term hlghiy liquid investments
- with a maturity of three months or less when purchased, and all bank demarid deposrcs
certificates of deposit, money-market and savings accounts. At September 30, 2009, all of the
City's'.cash and investments met this definition.

INVESTMENTS - Debt securities owned are reported at cost plus accrued interest which
approximates market. Purchases and sales of investments are reflected on trade dates. Net
realized gains or Iosses on sales of investments are based on the cost of investments applied on
a first-in, first-out basis and are reflected in current operating results.
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“CITY OF POLK CITY, FLOR!DA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30 _2_009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY'OF‘ SIGNIFICANT AC’COUNTiN’o ‘POLiCIES (cont...)

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE The Ctty acerues. its. unbilled utility service
fess: This represents the estimated value of service from the last billing date to year end and
totaled $114,098 at September 30, 2009. A reserve for doubtful accounts is mainhtained in each
fund equal to the. value of the utility customer receivables that are not expected to be collected.
As. of September 30, 2009, such reserves for all funds. totaled $6,138. Receivables are reported )
in the financial statements net of the reservefor doubtful Aaccounts. .

[N.TERFUND RECENABLES AND- _P_AYABLES - To th_e_ extent any interfund balances
exist; management anticipates they will be settled in cash as c'mpbsed toa perma‘nent transfer.

INVENTOR]ES Supply tnventones of the genera] fund and the enterprise funds are
Jmmatenal and not recorded as ‘assets. Such items are charged to expense when purchased.

o CAPITAL ASSETS - In the government-WIde financial. statements capital assets mctude
land, buildings, improvements, utility plant, and fumiiture and eqmpment with an individual cost of
$500 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of two years as defined by City resolution.
. Such assets are recorded at historical cost, if. purchased and at fair market value at date of gift, if
donated. Major additions are capitalized while maintenance: and repairs which do not improve or
- extend.the life of the. respective assets are charged to expense. Governmeratal fund.infrastructure
assets {e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, streets, drainage systems and Itghtmg system) acquured

o pnor to October 1, 2003, have not been reported

In_the fund fi nancsal statements capltal assets used in govemmental fund operatrons are
accounted fot as capital outlay expencittures of the governmental fund upon acquiisition. Capltal‘
assets used in proprietary fund operatlons are accounted for the same as in the govemment—wzde
statements

Capital asset depreciation is recognlzed using the’ stralght-llne method over the estlmated useful
Ilves of the related assets, as follows:

_Type v o " Years

‘Utility plant in service 1 40
Buildings and improvements - “10- 30
Infrastructure - 40
Machinery and equipment 3-10

Vehicles: . 57

RESTRICTED ASSETS - Includes cash and investments that are legally restncted to
specific uses by extemal parties. The City generally uses restricted resources first when an
expense is mcurred for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are avatlable

1 INTEREST COSTS - Interest costs are capitalized when 1ncurred on debt where
proceeds were used to finance the construction of enterprise fund capital assets. Interést earned
on proceeds of tax-exempt borrowing arfangements restricted 1o the acquisition of qualifying
assets is offset against interest costs in determining the amount to be capitalized. No net interest
cost were capitalized for the year ended September 30, 2009.
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CITY OF POLK CHTY, FLORIDA
' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNlFlCANT ACCOUNTING POLlClES (cont J

LONGnTERM OBLEGATIDNS - ln the government—wrde fmancral statements and.
proprietary furid types in the fund fi nancial, statements; long-term. debt and. other lorig-term
obligations are reported as liabilities 'in the ‘applicablé govemmental activities, business-type
activities, or -proprietary fund, type- statement of net assets, Bond premiums, discounts: and
issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the bonds outstanding
~method. Bond issuance costs are reported as assets, het of amortization. Bond premiums and
* " discounts are reported, net of amortization,. in the related debt balances shown in the financial
statements Long-term debt for governmental furids is not reported as liabilities in the fund
- financial statements; rather the debt procgeds are reported as other financing sources and
payments of pnnmpal and ihterest are reported as expendltures when due. The accounting for the
proprletary fund is. the same in the fund statements asitisin the govemment—wade statements.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES Slck leave is credited to an employee on the basis of
-eight hours per month of service riot to exceed ninety days. Accumulated sick lezive does not vest
~and is hot paid upon termination of employment Vacation- leave is credited to an employee
dependlng on -yeadrs, "of service,: rangmg from five to 20 days. per year. Vacation leave
accumulation is limited to 160. hours for hourly employees and 240 hotirs for salaried employees )
Eligible employees accumulate two personal days-a: year not to’ exceed ten days. The City
Manager is entitled to accrue all unused leave, including vacation, sick and personal Ieave -
without limit. Upon termination, the: City pays for all unused vacation leave and pérsonal days .
subject to the above limits on benefit accumulation except for the City- Manager who will be _
compensated for all unused ‘leave, including’ sick leave, upon termination. The: liability for these
compensated absences-is fecorded as long-term in the government-wide: statements ‘and in the .
proprietary furid financial statements because the maturities are not’ ‘deferminable. Iri the fund
- financial statements, the governmental ‘funds do nof report the compensated absence lrablllty
because it is generally not payable from expendable ava;lable f|nanClal resources ’

CONNECT]ON FEES AND IMPACT FEES - Conriection fees represent relmbursement.
of the costs incurred to perform. the connection of the respective utilities, and are recorded as
" operating revenue when received. Impact fees which are not-considered connection fees since

they substantially exceed the ‘cost of eonnection, are. recorded as capital confributions when
received. Prepaid impact fees received which reseérve capacity in the City’s future water or sewer
facilities are deferred and reported as capital contnbutlons when the requrrements of the
Developer agreements are met by the City, "

lNTERFUND TRANSFERS Permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the
reporting entity are classified as mterfund tranisfers. For purposes of the Government-wide
Statement of Activities, all interfund transfers between individual enterpnse funds, when
applicable, are eliminated. -
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. CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. Septéi’ttber 30, 2009 -

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cort...)
- EQUITY CLASSIFtCATIONS -

Government-\_nrlde Statements Equity is classn" ed as net assets and dlsplayed in three |
components: :

a) . Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists. of capital assets including .
restricted assets from debt proceeds, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings.
that are attributable to the acqwsnhon constructlon or lmprovement of those assets.

by Restricted- net assets - Con3|sts of net assets with constralnts ptaced on. the use
either-by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
_regulations of other govemments ar- (2). law . through congstifutional provisions or
enabling legislation. The govemment-WIde statement of net assets reports $110,370
of restricted net assets of whlch $32.881is restr:cted by enablmg Ieg|slat|on

‘) Unrestncted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet ‘the det‘ mtlon of B
:"restrlcted" of "invested i in capltat assets, net of related debt.”

Fund- Stateinerits « Governmental fund equuty is classit"ed as fund’ balance Fund‘
" balance ‘is fuither classified as reserved and unreserved. Reserved fund balance
represents’ amounts that are’ not available' for appropriation or ‘are Iegally restricted by
outside parties for a specxt‘ c purpose. Proprietary- fund eqmty is cIassnﬁed the.same a$ in
the govemment-WJde statements ‘ :

. NOTE2-.PROPERTYTA_X¢22_M.ﬂ_I2_ﬁt__R- s

: Under Florlda Law the assessment of all propertles and the ‘collection of all county, mumcrpal-
and school board property taxes are- consolidated in the offices .of the Polk County Property
Apprarser and Polk- County. Tax Collector. The tax levy of the City is. established by the City
Council prior to October 1-of each year-and the Polk County Property Appraiser incorporates the -
‘mlltage into the total tax tevy, which includes the municipalities, the County, independent districts *
and the Polk County School-Board tax requirements. State statUtes permit_ muntmpallties to-levy -
property taxes at a: rate of up to 10 mills. The Cltys mt!tage rate in effect for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2009 was 6. 7425 . .

All taxes are due and payabte on November 1 (levy date) of each year and unpa:d taxes become
delinquent on April 1 followmg the year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for
early payment as follows: 4% in of November; 3% in December, 2% in January, 1% in February.
The taxes paid in March are without discount. Delinquent taxes on real and personal property
bear interest of 18% per year. On or-firior to June 1 follow;ng the tax year, certlt' cates are sold for
all dellnquent taxes on real property.

NOTE 3- BUD‘GE_TARY LAW AND PRACTICE -

. The budget is adopted by Ordinance on a City-wide basis for all City funds on or before October 1
of each year as required by State Statute. City Ordinance éstablishes the legal level of budgetary
* control at the individual fund level. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level.
Within these control levels, management may transfer appropriations subject to notification of the
City Council. ' ' :
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009 '

NOTE 4 - STEWARDSHIP, ‘CCIMPL]ANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY '

A Compl:ance With Flnance Related Legal and Contractual F’rowslons The C|ty was not in
’ compliance with thé debt service reserve or sinking fund monthly deposit requirements of
. the 1999 sewer revenue bonds or the 2004 watér revenué bonds. The City was not in
‘compliance ‘with the monthly- sinking fund deposit reqwrements of the 2007 capital -
improvement revenue bonds. The City was not in comphance W|th the rate covenarit of
the 1999 sewer revenue bonds o

B. ‘Deﬁcit fund balance or Net Assets of Endivid_qall Funds - As of‘S,ep.temb'er 30, 2009, the
general fund had a deficit fund balance of $478,180. .

NOTE 5- DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS .

. DEPOSITS IN FENANC!AL !NSTITUTIONS Mummpahties in. Flortda are requ:red by.
State Statute Chapter 280 - "Security for Public Deposits Act”, to deposit operating funds only .
with financial institutions who are members of the State of Florida collateral pool ("qualified public
' deposﬂones") The State: of Florida ‘collateral pool! is a multiple financial institution collateral pool
with the ability to make additional assessments to satisfy the claims of governmental entities if
any.member financiaf mstltutlon fails, This: abllrty prowdes protectlon which is similar to deposxtory
insurance. \ : .

Th.e- captions on. the Kg'overnment—wi'de‘ s'tate_ment" of net aséets for "cash ‘and :‘c;ash
equivalents” both restricted and unrestricted, are summarized below: 3

Cash and cash eqiqiv.a]_ents:

‘Cash onhand S . S $ 100
Deposits in financial institutions: ) A

Insured or fully collateralized bank dep05|ts . _ 475,573

- Total 'cash and cash equivalents S " $ 475,673

'

INVESTMENTS - The types of investments in which the City may invest are governed. by
State Statutes. According to the State Statutes, the City'is authorized to invest in the following

instruments: Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any mtergovernmental investment :

pool authorized through the. Florida Inter-local Cooperation Act; S.E.C. régistered money market
funds with the highest credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating company; interest-
bearing timeé deposits and savings accounts in qualified public depaositories; direct obligations of
the U.S. Treasury and federal. agencies and instrumentalities or repurchase agreements fully
collatéralized by such securities; and interest in an entity registered under the Investment
Company net of 1940 whose investments are limited to U.S. Governments. The Cnty maintained
no mvestments during the year other than deposits in fmancral institutions.
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~ CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30; 2009

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asséts‘ac;tivity for the,yéar ended September 30, 2009, was as follows:

. Governmental Activiites:’

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land L :
Construction in Progress
Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
Bufidings and Improvements
Recreational Facilities
Equipinent::

Intffastructura:
Sidewalk Systertis.
Drainage Systems
Totak ‘

Less, Accumnulated Deprecistion:
Buildings-and Improvements, -
Recreational Facilities -
Extipment |

Intrastiucture;
Sidewalk Systems
Draifiage Systems

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depréciable Capital Asséts; Net

_Bus'ine'séTgpe Activites:
Chapi,t;a'l' assets not being depreciated:
Land. ~ ’

"Conhstruction in F’rqgféss
Total’ B
‘Capital assets being depreciated:
Utiltiy Plant .
Equipment’
Total
Less, Accumiiated Depreciation:
Utiltiy Plant
Equipment

. Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Begirning Eniding
.Balance . Additions Reductions Balance
$ 412543 § -8 $ . 412,543
49118 136,901 - © 186,019
S . 461861 5. 135901 % $ 598562 .
'$ 2572168 3 S $ 2672166
242,444 30,472 272,916
369,885 3,005 372,890
111,852 - 111;852
75,626 - 75,626
3,471,978 . 33477 3,505,450
(201,930) . (62126) (354,056)
(70,835) ; (15,890) - - {(86,823)
(197,889) (48,700) (244,589}
(4,208} {2,796} " (7.002)
(6,048). . {1.892) (7.940)
{570,908) (129,504) _ (700412} -
§ 2001065 § . {96,027}, § - $ . 2805038
©$. 1,027,000 § . 841,587 % $ 1,86‘:5,587
| 3456480 . 534,510 _ 4,060,890
§ 4483480 § ° 1476097 '$ § 50950577
$ 9834486 S - RPN $. 9,834,466
158,337 69,240 - 227,567
. 9,992,793 69,240 16,082,033
{560,065} (269,977 ' (830,042)
(24,750), (33317} (58,087)
(584,815) . (303,294 . (888,109)
3 9,407978 S (234,054) % $ 9,173,924
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’ September 30, 2009

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (cont...)

Depreciation expense was charged to the following program?s and functions: '

G_dvetﬁme’ntal Ac'tivitié_s:
Genral govemment - $ 97,029
Library - - ' 1,707
Building and zoning . ) 232
Code enforcement . . _ 232
Streets - ‘ ‘ ' - 11,574,
Parks and recreation . I . 16,839
Stormwater utiity C i o 1,891

Total depreciation expense - governmentat act_iyi_tiés ] $ "1_29,504
Business:type Activities: .

CWater - T $ 114525
Sewer . _ s . 188,769
Total depreciation ex‘pensé, - bUSinéss-—'type_ activities . $ 303,204

20




CITY OF POLK CIW, FLORIDA

"NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

September 30, 2009

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

- The followirig is.a summary of changes int long-term ob!:gatlons for the year ended September 30

Netes_.to Long-Term Obligations Table

Governmental Activities:

2009: .
Beginning Additions Reductions - Ending Cument
Balance | ) Baldnce  Portion
Governmental Activities ‘
Long-Term Debt: . : 4
Notes Payable: _
Searies. 2007 Capitat- lmprovement ) )
Reveniie Bonds . $ 1708197 § - § (31626 § 1676571 32,930
Total Bonds and Notes Payatie o 1,708,197 e (51.626) - 1,676,571 32,930
Other Liabilities: ) i ‘
Compensated Absences ¢ 49,825, . 15,047 - K 64,872 38,887
’ Total Other Lisbilties ~ : ° ‘ . 49825 15047 - p4872 . 38887
Total Long-Teim Liabilifies $. 1,758,022 . § 15047 $ .. (31626) § 1,741443 71,817
- 'Less Amount Due in One Year ’ : T . $  (71,817) )
Net Long=Term Debt Due After Onie Year " §: 1,660,626
Busiriess-Type Activities' . ;
" Long-Term Debt: o
Notes Payable: .
Instakment Note i Pofi County - $ 1027000 $ . - - % - § 1,027,000. 129,588
tristallment Nole'to Florida Department of . ; : o
Environmendal Protection 1893615 | 835198 oo 2728813 43,787
Iitaliment Note to Old Natlonal Leasmg s 69,240 ' (5.958) R 63,282 12,512
Total Notes Payable : 29200615 . 904,438 (5,958} 3,819,005 185887
" Revenue Certificates: o : . ‘ : L o
Series 1999 Sewer Revenue Borids 533,800 e (8300) © 515,500 8,600
Series 2004 Water Reverue Bonds 1,158,000 ‘ . 150000 - 1,143,000 - 16,600
. Series 2005 Water / Sewer Revenug Noies |, -~ ~_ 4,000,000 - - 4poogos 214122
Total Revenue Certificates 5,681,800 R : {23,300) 5,658.500 238,722
Othér Liabfities: N ‘ .
Compensafed Absences. N - {(1,147) 463 -
Total Other Liabilities. ] 1,610 D -, . {1,147)- . 463 -
Total Long-Terr Liabilities. $ 8,604,025 § 904,438 § ° (30,405 9,476,058 $ 424,600
Less Amount Dus in Oné Yedr ' ; . {424,609) :
Net Long-Terni Debt Diie After One Year § 9,053,449

¢ Series 2007 Revenue Bonds - The USDA Rural Utilities Service Series 2007 Revenue
Bonds are secured primarily by the communication servicés tax and the half cent sales
Tax. The Series 2007 bonds bear interest at 4.41% with a final maturity of December 1;
" 2023. The bond proceeds weére used. to retire the Series 2006 Capital Improvement
Revenue Bond Anticipation Note which was used to construct the new City administration
facilities. The Series 2007 bonds reqwre the maintenance of sinking and reserve fund.
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" CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cort...)

Notes.to LOn‘g-Term Obligations Table (cont...) '

Busmess-Type Act|V|t|es

. ~Senes 1999 Revenue Bonds The USDA Rural Utilities Serwce Senes 1999 Revehue
Bonds are secured by the sewer revenues as well as the public service taxes reported as.
revenue in the general fund. The Series 1999 bonds bear interest at 4.375% with & final .
maturlty of September 30, 2039. THe 1999 bond proceeds were used to construct a
sewer transmission. system. The bonds require the malntenance of smkmg reserve, and
renewal and replacement funds.

. <Senes 2004 Revenue Bonds ~ The USDA RuraI Utilittes Service Series 2004 Revenue
Bonds are secured by net revenues: of the water system. The Series 2004 bonds bear
interest at 4.25% with a- final matunty of September 1, 2043. The Series 2004 bond
proceeds were Used: to retire the 2002 bonds which were used to purchase .a water
system. The bends require the ma:ntenance of smklng, reserve, and reénewal and
replacement funds : ! . . ’

e Seres 2005 Capltal Improvement Revenue Note The Capital lmprovement Revenue .
Note, Series.2005 is secured by sewer impact fees and a subordinate lieri and pledge of
the net.revenues of the ‘sewer and water systems. The Series 2005 Note was a line of -
credit that ‘was converted to a term loaf in De¢ember 2008. The Series 2005 Note bears
interest at 3.06% with semi-annual principal and interest payments of $83,749.0n Juhe 1
and December 1 with a final maturity on. December 1, 2023. The note: proceeds were o
used to fund water and sewer system improvements. ; :

. Installment Note to FIorlda Department of Enwronmental Protechon (WW 51201 P) ThlS',:
. note'is secured by thé net revenues of the sewer gystem and sewer |mpact fees. The.
note bears interest at 2.41%, with semi-annual principal and interest payments .of
$35.629.on March 15 and September 15, and continding to maturity. in September 2049,
" The note proceeds were used to fund the planning, administrative, and engineering costs
,for construction of wasfewater transmlssmn coliection, reuse and treatment facnlmes The
Note requlres the maintenance of a smkmg fund.

. Installment Nete Payeble ta Polk County Thxs note- payable bears |nterest at $1%:
Annual payments begin on February 12, 2009 with a final maturity on February-12, 2019.
Interést and principal are payable monthly with a final maturity of August 1, 2008. The
‘note financed the purchase of two tracts of real property totalmg 45 acres that were used
for dlsposal of wastewater efﬂuent

. Installment Note Payable to Old National Bark - This note payable bears interest at

6.5%. Monthly interest and pnnc:pal payments.begin on April 4, 2009 with a fihal maturity

- on December 4, 2012. The note financed the purchase of three trucks used by the water
.and sewer funds.
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" CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
 September 30, 2009

NOTE 7 . LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont...)

Notes to Long-Term Ob‘liggtieﬁe Table (;coh‘t..‘.)'

Maturities:

Annual reqwrements to repay all Iong—term bonds and notes payable as of September
30, 2009, were as fo1lows _

Business-Type Activities

Fiscal Year _Governmental Activities

Ending September 30 Principal " nterést . Principal Interest

. 2010 $ 32930 $ 69,159 $ 424609 § 476,194
2011 34,289 67.800 376,708 338,951
2012 35,703 - 66,386 395,103 330,780
2013 . 37,176. ° 64,913 - 414,704 311,337
2014 38,709 - 63,380 426,385 290,625 .
2015-2019 - 218,858 291,587 2,270,839 1,100,650
2020-2024 | 267,877 . 242,567 (2,014,561 - 656,192

1 2025-2029. 327.877 182,568 - 555,265 ,453,6_0‘4,\
2030-2034 401,316 109,129 653,290 356,457
2035-2039  281,836" - 23, 528' 772,470 240,389 -
2040-2044 = - 674,353 115,489
20452049 - o = _ o - 500 071 33 91 0
Total % 1,676,571 $ 1,181,017 $ 9, 478 058_ $ 4, 704 5?8

NOTE 8 FUTURE REVENUES THAT ARE PLEDGED

The City has pledged various future revenue sources for various debt issues. For the water-and
sewer systems, the City has pledged future révenues, net of certain opérating -expenses. The
following table provides & summdry of the pledged revenues for the City’s outstanding debt |
|ssues Additional information regarding the City's pledged revenue canbe found in Note 7.

% of

Total Current Year
Principal and Principal and . Revenuss to
. Interest’ Inferest Current Year Principal and
. Pledged Revenue | - _ Qutstanding Paid Revenue interest Paid
Communication services tax pursuait to Séction:202:19, ' e ’
Florida Statutes and the half cent sales tax pursuaht to _ ;
‘part Vf of Chapter 218, Florida Siatutes $ 2,857,588 $ 102,089 $ 193540 189.58%
Water and sewer eystem nef revenue and .
sewer impact fees - 12,375,162 - 196,651 444 117
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_ CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Sept‘e_mber- 30, 2009

NOTE ¢ - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Intetfund transactions are summarized below:

lnterfund re‘eei\rab'l.es and payables a's'of September 30, 2009 consisted of:

Receivable Fund - Payable Fund . : Amount
Géneral Fund. AR Sewer Fund $. 136,659
General Furnd : - Water Fund , $ 3249

Sewer Fund ~ Water Fund : $- 71,346

The above interfund baEances arose from the fund with- the receivable i mcurrmg cost on behalf of
the fund wath the payable which were not repald pnor to yearend

Interfund transfers for the year endlng September 30, 2009 con5|sted of

,_Recew;ng_Fund— E - Paylng Fund “ ‘Amou_nt“-

General Fund -~ Water Furid ' $ 100,000

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN

The Cfty has -elected to partncnpate in The: Flonda Retlrement System {FRS), by authonty of

- Ordinance 95-1 dated January 3, 1995. The FRS is primarily @ State-administered, cost—shanng, -

multiple-employer; - -defined benefit retirement plan (Plan). FRS provisions are established by
Chapters 121 and 122, Florida Statutes; Chapter 112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238,
Fiorida Statutes; and Florida Retirement System Rules, Chapter 608, Fiorida Admiriistrative
Code, wherein eligibility, contributions;, and benefits are defined and described in detail
-Membership is. compulsory for. ‘all full-ime and part-time employees warklng in-a regularly
established. position of one of the participating employers.: Elected officials may elect not to
participate, Participating employees are asagned to one of five membership classes. The
membership class determines the- retirement contributlon rate for the employee the retlrement
age, and the amount of retirement benefits to be ‘paid.

FRS plan benefits include retirement, disability, survivor and an optional retiree health insurance
_ subsidy which the City participates in at an additional contribution rate of .84% of gross pay.
Benefits.in the Plan vest at 6 years of service. All members are eligible for normai retirement
benefits at age. 62 or at any age after 30 years of service, which may include up to 4-years of
credit for military service. The Plan also includes an early retifemerit provision, but imposeés a -
penalty. for each year a8 member retires’ before his or her normal retirement date. Benefits are
computed on the basis of age, average fi final compensation and service credit. Any changes in the.
benefits must be approved by the Florida legislature. Assets of the FRS are managed by the
State Board of Administration which ‘consists of the Governor, State Treasurer and.State
‘Comptroller. The portfolio consists of a highly diversified mix of investments ‘which includes
govemnment and corporate bonds, stocks,-income-producing real estate and short-term money
market investments. The FRS issues an annual report each year containing further details which
may be obtained by contacting the Division of Retirement, 2639-C N. Monroe Street,
Tallahvassee; Horida 32399-1560.




CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: -September 30, 2009

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLAN (cont..) IR

The Plan's- poircy is to fund, from monthly employer contnbut:ons actuanal!y determlned amounts
expressed as' a percentage, of covered payroll necessary to- ‘pay benefits wheh due; including
amortizing the unfunded lizbility over 30 years. The Clty made all of its. required contributions for
the year ended September 30,2009, which totaled $57,777. Actual contribution rates expressed
as a percentage of gross pay, which mctude the optional health msurance subsrdy, were as
follows: :

Priorto -After‘ .

-_crass O July1,2009  July 1, 2009
Regular . T . 9.85% 1 ' ‘9.85%

Semor Management ‘ C C1312% 13.12%

NOTE 11~ COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

. The Clty is obllgated under certain: leases accounted for as operatlng leases. Operatmg
leases do not give rise. to_property rlghts or lease obllgations and, therefore, liabilities from

. the lease agreements are not reflected . in the City’s accourit groups. Remammg mmlmum
lease payments are not sugnnr carit. . ‘

» Effectlve March 1, 2007, the City contracted. with the Polk - County Sheriff to provide police
services within the City: Under the agreement, the City shall pay $421, 335 for base services .
for'the fiscal year ended: September 30, 2010 which is the final year of the current contract.
The City pald $309,061 for the year ended September 30, 2009.

¢ The City has entered into a Iease agreement with Cardlnal Hsll LLC to lease a parcel of land

" to be utilized for a temporary wastewater treatment package plant. In lieu of a cash lease

payment; the Clty credits the property owner with one water and sewer impact fee per month

of the six year lease which began on February 1, 2006. The City guaranteed complete

- removal of the wastewater treatrnent plant operation no later than July 1, 2012. If the City has

not removed the wastewater freatmient operation as of July 1, 2012, the’ City will continue to

“credit the owner with one water and sewer impact fee per month plus an additional monthly
cash payment of $1,000 untii the operatlon has been removed ' :

‘s The City partlc:lpates in several programs that are fuIIy or partrally funded by grants received
from Federal, ‘state, or county agency sources. Expendltures financed by grants are subject
to audit by the appropriate grantor government/agency. If expenditures are disallowed due to
non-compliance with grant program regulations, the Clty may be required to reimbirse the
grantor government/agency. As of September 30, 2009, the City believes that disallowed

" expenditures discovered in subsequent audits, if any, will not have a material effect on any of -
the individual funds or the overall financial position of the City.
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2609

NOTE 11—~ RISK MANAGEMENT AND LITIGATION

-During the ordtnary course of its. operattons the Clty is exposed to various risks of losses refated
to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of asséts; errors and ‘omissions, injuries fo
employees, and nataral disasters. The City maintains cormmercial insurance coverage in amounts.
management feels is adequate to protect and safeguard the assets of the City. There have beeri
no significant reductions in coverage nor have séttlement amounts exceeded the Clty 5. coverage
during the year ended September 30, 2009..In the dpinion of the City’s management and legal
counsel, legal clalms and litigation are not anticipated to have materlal impact on the fi nanmal’ ,
position of the Gity. The~ City's workers compensation . coverage is provided through a

" nonassessable, nonprofit, tax-exempt risk sharing poel Settled claims: resultmg from these nsks
have not exceeded msurance coverage. : - ;

, NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The amount due to Polk County for impact fees collected but not remltted as of September 30
“2009 was $537, 673. This armount had not been remitted to the county .as-of July 1, 2010 This
I|ab|I|ty is reported on the statement of net assets as, due to other governments

The Clty was unable to ‘make the February12, 2009 and. February 12 2010 schéduled annual" "
debt service payments of approximately $174, 386 each on the installment note payable:to Polk
- County. The debt serwce payments dire of $348,772 has not been paid to the county asof July 1, -

‘ 2010 ’ . . , .

As of June 16, 2010, the City manager resigned her positiori and entered into an employment
separatlon agreement with the City. Pursuant fo the employment separation agreement, the City -
has agreed to pay separation benefits totallng $68,145 in seven equal monthly payments of
$9.735 beginning oh June 16, 2010. The separatlon benefits consist of accrued vacation and.sick
leave plus six manths’ salary and vehicle allowance. Furthermore, the City will continue to. make
refirement contributions and pay the former Clty manager’s l|fe health and dlsabtllty tnsurance
premmms through December 16, 2010 :

NOTE 13 NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 2004 the GASB issued Statement No. 45 Accountlng and Financial Reportlng by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits: Other Than Pensions. The basic premise of the
 statement is that Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) are earned by empioyees and should
be recognized by the employer as the emiployee provides services. GASB 45 requires employers
to account for and report the annual cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations . .and
commitments refated to them in the same manner as they currently do for pensions. The City .
dogs not provide.retifees‘a health insurance benefit at the City’s cost. Retirees haveé the option to
pay an amount equal fo the actual premium for health and. life insurance charged by the
. insurance cdrrier, but there is an implied subsidy in the insurance premiums for retirees because:
- the premium charged for these retirees is the same as the premium charged for active
employees, who are yourger in age.. Accounting for OPEB under GASB No. 45-will result in the
- City reporting an actuarially-based lrabi!tty for the cost of these benefits. The City will be required
to implement GASB No. 45 in the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2009 and has not yet
determinied the impact on the financial statements.of implementing this statement
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GENERAL FUND -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Variance with

27

o _ Actual
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
- ' (Budgetary Positive
Original Final Basis) (Nagative) -
'RESOURCES (inflows); ‘ S

Taxes . -~ $ 977474 | §  OTTATA4 - $ 1043556 - $ 66,082
Licenses and permits ‘ 77700 J7,700 25,068 ° {52,632)

Intergovernmental revenug 751,009 751,009 270,655 _ (480,354)

Charges for sérvices 216,800 216,800 242,654 25,854

Fines and. forfeitures 190,200 10,200 3,404 . {6,798)

“Other * o ‘ 24,300 24,300 36,367 12,067

Am_ounts available for appropriations, 2,057,483 ' 2,057,483 1,621,704 (435,779)

. CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (outﬂows) o ' : e
Genéral goveminent - 636,868 " 636,868 765,128 (128,260}
Public safety 361,288 - 361,288 . 352,719 8,569
"Physical environment 180,781 -180,781 179,086 1,695
Transportation 201,592 201,592 | 245,204 (43612)
Gultare/recreation 107,713 107,713 . 107,883 {170)
Debt service. 102,689 102,089 - 193,316 (91,227) .
- Capital outlay 595 824 595,824 - 102, 089 493_,7'_35 :

Total charges to apprb,priatiphs 2 1 86 155'- 2,186,155 - 1,945, 425 . 240,730
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RESOURCES . g _ .
‘ OVER CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (128,672) (128,672) {323,721) {195,049)

- OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - ' o
Imipact fees ‘ 90,000 90,000 . 41,334 " (78,666)"
Transfers in ‘ 100,000 100,000 400,000 o -
Total otherf'nancmg sgurces. - 190,000 190:000. 111,334 (78,66,6)-

NET c_:HANGE N FUND BALANCE $ 61,328 $ 61,328 . § (212,387) §  (273715) -
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rynjulfson CPA, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

INDE"F’ENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS = -

~ Honorable Mayor and Members of the C;ty Commussnon
City of Polk City, Florlda . ‘

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental actswtles the business-type activities,
each major fund of City: of Polk City, Florida, as of‘and for the year ended’ ‘September 30, 2009, and
have issued our report thereon dated July | 27, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with
guditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Audn‘mg Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the Umted States ,

. Cemgllance and Other Matters

As part of obta:nlng reasonable assurance about whether City of Polk City, Florida’s ﬁnanmal statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of Iaws

) regulatlons contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial. staternent amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions. was not an objective of our audit and, accordzngty 'we do not express such an.opinion. |
The results of our tests disclosed instances of nonoompllance or other matters that are required fo bé reported
. under Government Auditing Standards and which are: descnbed in the accompanying schedule of findings
questroned costs as items 09-09 and 09-10. « :

’ Internal Control Over Fmanc;al ReDortmq ‘

In planning and performmg our audit, we considered City of Polk City, Florida's intemal oonh'ol over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing-an opinion on the effectiveness of City
of Polk City, Florida's internal c_ontrol over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Polk City, Florida’s internal control over finaricial reporting.

Our-consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficienciés in internal control over -
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or matérial weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal controt over financial reportlng that we
consider to be signifi cant deficiencies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
- PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS :

(cont )

A control defi iciency exists when the deS|gn ar operatlon of-a control does not allow management or
employees; in the normal course of perform:ng their ‘assigned functions,. to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A S|gmﬁcant deficiency is a control deficiency, of combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects City of Polk- City, Florida's ability to initiate, authorize,
record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepled accounting
principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a mlsstatement of City of Polk Clty,
‘Florida's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or. détected by

- City of Polk City, Florida’s internal oontrol We consider the’ defl0|enc|es described in the

’ accompanylng schedule of fi ndlngs and questloned costs to be srgnn‘” cant deficiencies .in internal .
-control over financial reportlng [Fmdlngs 09 01 09 02, 09 03 09-04, 09 05, 09—06 09- 07 and 09- .
08.]- : , '

A materral ‘weakness is a srgnlflcant def CIency, or comblnatlon of significant det" iciencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the fi nanCIaI statements will
not be prevented or detected by Clty of Polk Clty, Flonda s mternal control. :

Qur consideration, of lnternal control over t" nancaal reportlng was for the ilmlted purpose described in

- the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control
that mrght be sigrificant deficiencies or material weaknessas We belleva that aII of the S|gn|ﬁcant'~
deficiencies described above are matenal weaknesses. :

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Clty of Polk Clty, Florida ina separate
management tetter dated July 27, 2010. : :

City of Polk Clty, ‘Florida’s response to the ﬁndmgs |dentaf'ed in"our aud:t is descnbed in the
accompanying letter of managements response and ‘the accompanying schedufe of findings and -
questioned costs. We dad not audit Clty of Polk Clty, Florlda $ response and, accordingly, we express :
no opinion orit : «

. This report is mtended solely for the information and use of the Clty Commission, management, others
within the organization, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida and is not intended to be and’
should not be used by anyone other than'these specified parties.

Brynjilion CA LA,

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.
Lakeland, Florida
July 27, 2010
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") rynjulfson CPA, P.A.

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER

,Honorable Mayor and Members of the Clty Coungil
Clty of Polk City, Florida

We have audlted the financial statements. of the Clty of Polk Clty, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year
-ended September 30, 2009, and have |ssued our report thereon dated July 27, 2010.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Untted States of -
" America and the standards apphcable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

E issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;. OMB Clrcular A-133, Audits of States, Local

- Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Sectich 215.97; Florida Statutes. We have issued our

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Flnanclat Reportlng and Compliance and Other
Matters Based on: an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with. Government
Auditing  Standards and Report of !ndependent Certified ' Public Accountant on Compliance With

- Reguirements Appllcable to Each Major Federal Program and State Flnanmal Assistance Project and On

Internal Control Over’ Compliance .in Accordance "With OMB Circular A-133, Section 215.97, Florida

Statutes, which are dated July 27, 2010. Disclosures in. those reports should be considered and have not-
been duplicated in thls management letter. ' :

‘Addltronally, our.audit was conducted in accordance with Chabter 10. 550 Rules of the Audrtor General,
“which governs the conduct of local gevernmental entlty audits performed in the State of Florida. This
letter includés the followmg mformatlon whrch is not lncluded in the aforementloned auditor’s reports or
schedule ‘ . i ) .

. Sectlon 10. 554(1)(r)1 Rules of the Audltor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the precedlng'
' annua! frnanma! audit report ,

Pnor year audlt findings that have not been resolved are detalied in the accompanymg schedule of
findings and questioned costs as findings. 09-01, 09-02, 09-03, 09-04 09-05, 09-09, 09-10, and in

this rndependent auditor's management letter as flnd:ng 09-01M.

s Section 1:0.554‘("1 }i)2., Rules of the Auditor Generat, requ-ires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218. 415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Polk Clty, Florida complled with. Sectlon
218 415, Florida Statutes

« ‘Section 10.554(1)i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we have
no recommendations other than- those reported in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questloned costs. ,
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Polk. Clty, Flonda
Page Two..

Sectlon 10.554(1 )(1)6 Rules of the Auditor Generat requires fthat the name or oﬁ' cial title and Iegal
authonty for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. For the legal”
authority of the: Clty of Polk Clty, Florida; see footnote A of the summary of signifi cant accountlng
pottcres i the notes to the financial statements of the basic fi nanC|aI statements.

- Sectlon 10. 554(1)(1)4 Ru!es of the Audltor General, requnres that we address viclations of laws,

regulations, contracts’ or grant: agreements, or abuse that have oceurred, or are Iikely to have
occurred, that have an effect on-the determination of financial statement amounts that is less than
material but more than mconsequentia! Our audit disclosed the follewing matters required to be
disclosed. In connection with our audit, we have no recommendations. other than those reported in
the accompany:ng 'schedule of fi ndmgs and questioned costs. - :

Section . 10 554(1)(1)5 Rules of the Audltor General prowdes that the auditor may, based on
. professmnal judgment, report the: followmg matters that are mconsequentral to the determination of .

fi nancnal statement amounts, consuﬂenng both quantitative and qualltatlve factors: (1) violations of
laws, regulatlons ‘contracts or grant agreements -or-abuse that: have occurred -or are likely to have
oceurred, and (2) control deficiencies that are not s:gnlf cant deficiencies, motudmg, but not limited to:
(a) improper or inadequate accountlng procedures (e.d., “the omission of requu'ed disclosures from
the annual finangial statements); (b) failures to -properly record financial transactions; and (¢)
inaccuracies,’ shortages, defalcations, and mstances of fraud discovered by, or that come tfo the
attentlon of the audltor In connectlon wnth our audlt we have the foilowmg recommendatlon _

09-01M: Polk County Impact Fee Recerpts and Remittances

For the past several years we have reported that Polk County impact fees of approxrmately $53‘I 000
were collected by the City during their 2007 and 2008 fiscal years that had not been remitted to the
county. During our current audit, we noted that the county impact fees collected during the 2009 fiscal
year were being remitted to the county on a monthly basis; however, the long outstanding balance of”
$531,000 has not been paid. Accordingly, we recommend that management contact the county to
discuss payment options.

Managemenit's response: We cOncur and a meeting with the county has been scheduled.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the Clty Councrl
City of Polk City, Florida" :
Page Three...

' og-bzm- Vacation Benefit Policy

Pursuant to sectlon 317 of the Clty employee handbook vacation time is available to regular fult and
part -time employees based upon the Iength of their employment as follows:.

13 After Six months of service the employee is-entitled to five vacation days.
& After one year of service the employee is entitledto ten vacation days ‘each year. :
-« Employees who are considered _exempt employees eam five vacation days in addmon to those_
' presc:rrbed above : ‘ C

The current Gity pollcy is to award an exempt employee with ten vacatlon days after the first six
months. service and fifteen days at their one’ year anniversary. This results in an exempt employee
‘recelvmg five weeks of vacation time in their first year and then three weeks each year thereafter until
they reach five years of service. Based upon our audit, we feel the employee handbook is written to
allow -an exempt employee. to receive an additional five days of vacation per year and: not an .
additional five days at six months and an additional five days- after one ysar of service: Accordingly,
-we recommend management review section 317 of the employee handbook and to. make the
riecessary charnges to clarlfy vacatlon time accrual gurdehnes for exempt employees

Managements response We concur and wrll fmplement the audrtor s recommendatfons

. Sect[on 10. 554(1)(|)7a Rules of the Auditor General - requires a statement be. included as to
whether or niot the local governmental entity has met . one-or more of the conditions described in
Section 218. 503(1) Florida Statutes, and identification of the specmc condition{s} met.” In connection
,with our audit, we determined that the City of Polk City, Florlda met one of the conditions.of Section
218. 503(1), Florida Statutes as of September 30, 2009 whiereby the City had a _negative combined
(1) total general fund unresérved fund balance: and (2) total combined enterprlse funds - unrestricted
net assets (general fund negative $478,180 and a combined enterprise funds negative $402,888), for -

* which resources were not available to cover the deficit. We determined this condition is a result of
detenoratmg financial cond|t|ons reperted in‘prior and current audits: '

< o Section 10.554(1)(i)7. b Rules of the Audltor General requnres that we determ[ne whether the annual.
financial report for the Clty of Polk City, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, filed’
with the Florida Department of Firiancial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes,
is in agreement with the annual financial audit repotrt for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. In
connection with our audit, we determined that these two reporis were in agreement. :
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Polk City, Florida
Page Four...

. Pursuant to Sectlons 10. 554(1 )iY7. c. and 10 556(7),- Rules of the Audifor General, we applied.
financial condition assessment procedures. lt.is management s.responsibility to monitor the City of
_Polk Csty Florida’s financiat condition, and our financial condifion assessment was based in part on

‘ representatrons made by management and the review of f nancnal mformataon provided by same.

The result of our assessment indlcates the City is experlencmg an overall deterioration in its fi nanmal

‘ _condrtron The general fund’s total liabilities exceed the general fund’s total assets by $264,728. The
—enterpnse funds owed the general fund $169,155 as of September 30, 2009 for which resources
were not available for current repayment. Furthermore, the enterprise funds’ current: liabilities of
$1,226,507 far exceed its currént assets of $393,794. The two enterprise funds are not generating
enough operating revenues to sustain themselves which is contributing to. a decline in the general
fund’s resources. Other causes of this deterloratmg financial condition included a lack of short-term

~ and Iong-term flnanc:al plans: to guide the City, a lack of cash analysis and forecasts and various
control def|<:1enc:|es as reported in prtor audits. - :

For the.last several years we “have recommend the City take |mmedtate corrective .actions in
response to our audit findings and to develop short-term and long-term financial plans that include
steps to strengthen the City’s fi nancial condition. During: our current audit we noted that management
' is performing cash analysus and forecastlng ‘while developing a financial plan to strengthen the City's
. financial condition. We continue to recommend that City management should analyze the existing
rate structures for the enterprise fuhds” operations to- determine their adequacy in covering expenses
and should explore all available o_ptlons to increase their revenues and/or decrease éxpenises.

L

We. would like to take this opportunity to thank the: City Counc:lors for aIIowmg us the pnv:lege 10 .be of
serwce and the - Crtys staff and management for the courteSies and cooperat:on extended to us during

our audlt

Audttmg standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca requirg us to |nd|cate that this
letter is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management, and the Florida
Auditor General, and is not mtended to be and’ should not be used by anyone other. than these specified

_ partles

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.
Lakeland, Florida
© July 27, 2010
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) rynjulfson C‘,PA,._\ P.A. '_

Certified Pubhc Accountants

- REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 'REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE -
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR 'A-133, SECTION 215,97,
FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL -

‘ Honorable Mayor. and Members of the Clty Councill
Clty of Polk Clty, Florida

Comphance '

,We have, audited the compliance of City of Polk Clty, Florida w:th the types of comphance
requirements described in: the U.S. Office’ of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supp!ement and the requirements.déscribed in the Executive Office. of the Governor's
State Projects comphance supplement, that. are appllcable to-each of its major federal programs and.
state fi nanmal assistance projects for the year ended September 30, 2009: City of Polk City,
Florida’s major federal programs and state fi nanmal assistance projects are identified in the’ summary
of auditor's -results’ section of the accompanying schedule: of findings and questioned costs..

Compllance with the’ reqmrements of laws, regulations, cpntracts and:grants-applicable to each of its .

major federal programs and state fi nancial assistance’ projects is the responsibility of Clty of Polk
City, Florida’s management. Qur responSIblllty is to express an opinlon ort Clty of Polk Clty,
Flor:da s compllance based on our audit. , :

, We condueted our. audlt of comphance in accordance with audltlng standards generally accepted in’

. the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States,’ Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgamzatfons and Section 215.97, Florida
Statutes; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Those standards and OMB Circular A-

. 133, Section 215.97, Florida Statites, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abolit whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have ‘a direct and material effect on a
major federal program or state financial assistance project occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidenée about City of Polk City, Florida's compllance with those regitirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our ‘audit does- not provide a legal
determlnatlon of C:ty of Polk City, F!orada s compliance with those requirements. ) iy

In our opinion, City of Polk City, Florida complied, in afl material respects, with the requirements
refered to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs and state financial
- assistance projects for the year ended September 30, 2009. However, the results of our auditing
procedures disclosed instances of noncompliarice with those requirements, which are required to be
" reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, and Chapter
10.550, Rules of the Auditor General and which are described in the accompanylng schedule of
findings and questloned costs as item 09-09 and 09-10.
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REPORT ON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE: PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL :
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANGCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133, SECTION 215.97,
FLORIDA STATUTES AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

(cont )

Internal Control Over Compllance

The management of City of Polk City, Florida-is responsrble for establlshmg and malntalnlng
effective internal control over compliance with the requiremerits of laws, regulations, contracts,-and
~grants applicable to federal programs and. state financial assistance projects. In’ planning and
performlng our audrt we considered City of Polk City, Florida’ s internal control over.compliance with
the requirements that could have a dlrect and material ‘éffect on a major federal program or a state
- financial assistancé project in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose -of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for-the purpose of expressing an opinion. on the
. effectiveness of internal control -over compirance Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the ‘
effectlveness of Clty of Polk City, Florida's mternal control over compilance

- ;-Our conSIderatlon of rnternal control over. compllence was for the Ilmlted purpose descrlbed in the :
preceding paragraph and would' not necessarily identify all deficiencies-in _internal control’ that might
be significant deﬁmencres or material weaknesses as defined: below. However, as discussed below :
we identified certain deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we conS|der to be significant
deficiencies and others that we consider to be material weaknesses .

" A control defi iciency in an entlty s internal control over compliance exists when the de5|gn or operatlon
.of a control does not allow management or employees in the normal course of performmg their
“assigned’ funct:ons to prevent.or detect’ noncomphance with a type of compllanoe requ:rement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to administér a federal program such that
there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s
intérnal -control. We consider the deficiencies in mtemal control over compliance described in the
.accompanylng schedule of findings and questtoned costs as iterns 09 02, 09-03 09-04 and 09-05 and
to be significant def iciencies. . ‘

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combinatiori of significant deficiencies, that results
in.more than-a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of complianée requirement.
of a federal program wilf not be prevented or detected by the entity’s intérnal control, We consider all
of the significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance described the accomparying
'schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. .
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'REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS .
APPLICABLE TO-EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL. CONTROL.
. OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133, SECTION 215.97,
FLORIDA STA TUTES, AND CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

(concluded)

Clty of Polk Clty, Flondas responses to the fi nd:ngs |dentn° ed.in our audit are descrlbed in the
_accompanylng schedule - of findings and questioned: costs. We did not audlt Clty of Polk Cltys
response and accordingly, we express no opinion on it. : o

This report is intended solely for the information and: use of management the City Councu others .
within the entity, the State of Florida Office of the Auditor General, federal and state -awarding -
agencies and pass-through entities and is not mtended to-be and should not be used by anyone other
than these spec:lfled parties. :

_Sqﬂui%@m C:‘)A PAL

Brynjulfson CPA P.A.
.Lakeland, Florida -
July 27, 2010

W
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE

 for the year endéd September 30, 2009 _ o o .

-

' Federal Grarts . , ( ' Federal -

Fedeéral-

Pass-thru Entity
Fundmg Source and Granf, Program B - ) : ‘CFDA# Identifying Number Expenditures
Federai Enwronmental Protaction Agency ) ’
Pass-througlt prograrms from: :
Floride Departrrient of Environmental Protection _ _ ’ _ ) o
Capitalization Grants fof State Revolving Funds 66.458 . WW51201P 3 781,118
Tatal Federal Envuronmental Protedction Agency Co - : ) _'_781 ,,1__19“
1.8, Department of Housing and Urban Developement
Pass-through programs from: ;
Polk County, Florida Commumty Development Block Grant: o . :
Palk City Skate Park Project . 1._4*.21 8 C0O0006 26,288
.. Total .S, Department of Housirg and Urban Developement B 26,288
. S Depariment ofJustrce
Direct programe
S . . - ) 2009-JAGC- s
Bureau of Justice Assistance Grant o ‘ 16.738 POLK-G,’-T?-OO4- 2,089
Total U.S. Department of Justice ) . . 2,089
Total ‘EXpendjtqree.of Federal awerdsl‘ o $ 809,496
State Grants co 4 A State \ ~ State
Fuinding Source and Grant Program = - o _ CSFA# . GrantNumber Expe_ndit'ures
State of Florida Department' of Envirgnmental. Protection & )
FRDAP Van Fieet Tra:l expansion 37‘.'\0}_7 _( C€070007 -, 3 70,358
" Polk Clty Wastewater Treatment Systern - Phase 1 ) 3?7039- © . LP6855 | 836,287
' C 906,645

' Total _State of Florida Department. of Env:ronmental _Protection

Total expe'ndi,tures of State awards -

$ 906,645

Notes to the Schedule of Expendltures of Federal Awards and ‘State Financial Assustance

NOTE A~ BASIS OF PRESENTATION

-

- The accompanying.Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance includes
the federal and state grant ac{ivity of thé City of Polk City, Florida, and is presented on the modified
accrual ‘basis of accounting The ‘information in this schedule is presented in accordance with. the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Govemments and Non-Profit Organizations,
Section 215,97, Flonda Statutes, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Therefore some
amounts presented in this schedule may. drffer from amounts presented in, or used in'the preparation of,

the basrc financial statements.

NOTE B — MAJOR PROGRAMS_

‘Major federal programs and major state projects are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results

sectron of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
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CITY. OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA ‘ ‘
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE (contlnued)
for the year ended Se tember 30, 2009

,NOTE C— CONTINGENCY

The grant revenue recelved is sub}ect to audit and adjustment If any expendltures are d:sailowed by the
grantor agencies-as a result of such an audit, any claim for re:mbursement tothe grantor agencies wouid
become a liability of the City. In-the opinion of management, all grant expenditures are in compliance with
the terms of the grant agreements and applicable fedéral and state laws and regulations :
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
T.ILN..59-6151760 - '

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTEONED COSTS
* for the year ended September 30, 2009

Section I:_Summary of Audit Results
Financial Statements

_ T'yp'e' of auditors' reportissued:
Internal control over financial reporting:

Materialz weaknesses identifi éd’?

Slgnlf' icant deflclencres |dentn" ed.
not conS|dered 1o be a material weakness’?

. | Noncompll_ance m_af[enalr to.-the ﬁnargc‘la!rstatemer;ts noted?
. _Fede;'al _A;wéré‘s and.‘iSta,té Prbjeét,s' Sect:on |

e internal control over rriajor fedg_ra[ award -prog’réms:l

Méteri_a‘l Weaknes:iSes identified? -

Significant deficiencies identified
not considered to be a material weakness?

Type of auditors’ repod..issuea‘ on compliance for méjor“programs:
Any audit findings d[sclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Circular A-133, Section 510 {a).and/or Section 215.97, Flonda Statutes
and Chapter.10. 550, Rufes of the Auditor General?
Major federal. program

~ 66. 458 -Environmental Protection Agency Cap[tallzatlon Grants

- for State Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish betweeri Tybe A and Type B programs:

‘Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

Major :stat_e_'proje_c_t: & _
37.039 - Polk City Wastewater Treatment System — Phase |

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:
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~ Unqualified

Yes

None reportéd--

Yes

Yeé ,

, ané réportéd

Unqualified

Yes.

$300,000

No

$300,000




CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
T.LN. 59-6151760 -
~ SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND. QUESTIONED COSTS

for the year ended September 30, 2009 ‘ o R |

S'ection ik Financial Statement Fin d""‘ 'gs :

This, sectlon |dent[f|es the s;gnlf' cant deficiencies, materlai weaknesses fraud, iliegal acts
violations of provisions_of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial
- statements for which Government Audmng Staridards reqmre reportlng in a Circular A~133
audit. ‘

Finding 09-01: Utility B:Ilmg Subledgers Should be reconc:led to the General Ledger

‘Condmon For the last several years we have reported that management does not penodlcal!y
~reconcile the utility accounts receivable and the customer deposit subsidiary -ledgers to the
. generai Iedger control accounts We noted that thls condltlon continues to ex;st :

Criteria; Good - internal control requ:res that a penodlc reconclllatlon be performed that would
‘agree’ the utility accounts receivable and customer deposﬁ subs:dlary Iedgers o the amounts
' posted to the generai Iedger control accounts : ; . ;

Effect Due fo-the Iack of penodlc reconcnllatlons between the aforementloned sub5|d|ary
ledgers - and the general ledger; the -City's fi nancial statements could . contain material
misstatemerits that would hot be: detected by employees in the ordlnary course of performmgf
the|r assrgned functions. - :

Cause There are no procedures in place to reconc;le the aforementloned sub5|d|ary Iedgers to
: the general ledger control accounts :

Recommendation: We recommend that management lmp[ement procedures io requlre monthly
reconciliations between the utility accounts receivable and customer dep03|t sub3|dtary ledgers -
to the general Iedger control accounts - .
Management s response. We concur and this has been rmplemented in Fy201 O

Finding 09,-02:- Res-trrcted Cash Mon-.'tqrmg&Needs Improvement

Condition: For the Iastsevera! years, we have reported that management does not monitor the
sources and uses of resources restricted by enabling legislation or centract or compllance with
debt related covenants. We noted that this condition continues to exist.

Cntena Internal controls should be in place that provides reasonable assurance that the City is
in compliance with restrictions placed upon certain resources by enabling leglslatlon or contract.
_ and to moniitor compllance with' debf related covenants ‘

Effect: Without tlmely monitoring, there is no assurance that restncted funds are being used for'
allowable uses and that the City is in compliance- with debt related covenants.
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CiTY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
T.L.N. 59-6151760

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
for the year ended September 30 2009 .

,-Se-ction"ll Fmanctal Statement Fmdmgs {cont.. )

09-02: Restncted Cash Monrtormg Needs lmprovement (cont 2)

Cause There aré no procedures in place to track the sources and uses of restrlcted resources
orto momtor compllance with debt related covenants :

Recommendatlon We continue to recommend that management segregate and monltor the
sources and uses of restncted funds and compllance with debt related covenants in. a timely
manner, . _ o

Managements response We concur and have rmp!emented changes to the our budgetmg and ‘ ".
monltorrng of restncted cash. ' : : ,

Findi'ng 09-03*’ Failure to Correct Internal 'Coht'"rol Deficiencies

Condltlon The Clty has not corrected severat 3|gntt" cant def' cienciés reported from prewous
audlts Whrle we have found ‘sore improvements in this area, there are stlll some reported
def‘ mencres from prior audlts that have not been corrected

Cntena Clty management or those charged with” govemance shou‘ldassess the effect of
) -reported 5|gn|f‘ cant deﬁclen0|es prewously commumcated to them and correct them

. Effect Failure to correct reported S|gn|ﬁcant def iciencies is a problem whlch in |tsetf is a
material weakness “in. internal “control. Failure to take corrective action in response to
recornmendatlons contained in audit reports mcreases the chance of errors or |rregu1ar|tres
_ occurrmg w:thout detectron : : - -

Cause City management has not addressed prevrously reported srgnrf‘ icant def'cnenc:es in
mternal controi r

‘Recommendatlon: The failure to comect significant deficiencies in internal control must be
~addressed immediat'ety' :

Managements response: We have begun several reconcmatrons in order to correct our mternai
control inefficiencies.
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
T.L.N, 59- 6151760 '

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
for the year ended September 30 2009

Sec'tl'on II: 'Finan-cial Statement Fin-ding's, (cont...)

Flndmg 09-04; Internal Control Over Fmancral Reportmg

Condrtron Last year we reported that the C:ty s rnternal controls over t" nancral reportrng failed to
detect several misstatements resulting in material audit adjustments During our current year
audit, we noted several mlsstatements resu!tlng in materlal audit adjustments - S ‘

Criteria: The Crty s mternal control over financial reporting should provrde reasonable assurance.
that all transactrons are proper!y recorded to the general. [edger :

Effect The Cltys yearend financial statements ‘contained’ materlal mrsstatements that were':
subsequently identified by the auditors who proposed. correctrng entnes ‘which. were accepted
and posted by the Clty s management SR ‘

Cause; The review process at year end was rot adequate to ensure that fi nanclal statemer)ts ‘
- were materrally correct . : : ‘

Recommendatlon Last year we recommended that management employ experlenced :
. accolnting personnel to provide adequate internal ‘controls over financial reporting. While we

noted management has utilized - experienced - accounting personnel for the year-end closing
procedires as well as other accounting functions, due. fo the extent of the current year audit
adjustments, we recomimend that ‘management design and |mplement adequate internal
controls over external financial reportmg to adequately review the generai ledgers and prepare
i nancral statements that are free of matenal mlsstatements

\Managements response: In FY 2009 the Crty of Polk Crty hrred more quahﬁed personnel to
‘address this issue. : . ‘

Fmdmg 09-05: Long Term Debt lssue Complrance

Condition: We noted the follovwng mstances of non-compl:ance W|th lohg term debt issue
covenants. oL

a) Series 1999 Sewer Revenue Bond
- (1) Audit report issuance deadline of 180 days after year-end not met
(2) While the City had enough cash in the sewer fund to meet the sinking fund and
reserve fund requirements of the Series 1999 bonds as of September 30,.2009,
management was not making monthly deposits into the sinking fund whlch is not
|n compliance with the Series 1999 bonds. ‘

: Managements resporise: We will have the FYOQ audit to the state by the deadline of 9/30/09
and are implementing a Sinking fund in FY10.
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-CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA

T..N. 59-6151760¢ -~ . )

- SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
for the ‘ear ended September 30, 2009 ' :

-SectIOn l: -Fmanc:'al Sta‘t'ement- Fl'ndl'nq__ (cdnt 3

Fmdlng 09 05 Long Term Debt Issue Compl:ance (cont )

‘ b) . Serles 2007 Capltal [mprovement Revenue Bonds :
- (1) Audit reportissuance deadline-of 180 days after year-end not met.
(2).While the City had enough cash in the generat fund to meet the sinking fund and
* reserve fund requirements of the Series 2007 bonds as of September 30, 2009,
management was not making- monthly deposits into the sinking fund which is not
in compltance with the Series 2007 bonds .

) Managements response We will have the FY09 aud:t to the state by the deadlme of 9/30/09
7 ‘and are rmplemenfrng a smkmg fund i in FY10. . )

¢} - Senes 2005 Capatal Improvement Revenue Note '
' (1) Audit report issuance deadling of 210 days after year-end not met ) :
(2) Last year we reported that pursuant to Ordinance 1089, the City shall not issue’
. additional debt secured by the Series 2005 Capital Improvement’ Revenue Note's -
pledged revenues without approval of the note owner. The Series 2005 pledged
~revenues ihclude the net revenues of the water and sewer system as well as
sewer.impact feeés. We noted the City had entered into a state revolvang fund loan
agreement with the Florida Department of Environmental Protectlon that pledges
sewer ngt revenues and sewer impact fees. This agreement was entered without .
approval of the ownier of thé Series 2005 note, Durmg the current year audit we
noted that thls has not been addressed ' .

Mariagement's response; We will have the FYOQ audit to the state by the deadhne of 9/30/09'
and are implemeniting a sinking fund in FY10. It is. ‘known to the City of Polk City that this did not- .
occur in FY09. However, current staff has not been. adwsed that this will not adversely affect
our loans. :

d) Series 2004 Water Revenue Bond Compliance '

(1) Audit report issuance deadline of 180 days after year-end not met.

(2) ‘While the City had enough' cash in the water fund to meet the sinking fund and
reserve fund requirements of the Series 2004 bonds-as of September 30, 2009, ,
they were not making monthly deposits into the smkmg fund which is not in
compllance with the Series 2004 bonds. ' -

Management’s response: We will have ,the FEY09 audit to the state by the deadline of 9/30/09
and are imp!ementing a sinking fund i FY10. ' -
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ClTY OF POLK CiTY, FLORIDA
T.I.N. 59-6151760 ‘
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
forthe ear ended Se tember 30, 2009

'S'e':ctj‘on- Ii: _l'F-inan_cial uStatemen_t'_ Fi.nc_lingjs {cont...) ' .
" Finding 09-05: Long Term- Debt lesue.'Compliance (,concl'uded;.. 2

S oe) Installment Note to Polk County :
' (1) As of July 2010, the City had not made their annual debt service payments of
$174,386 to Polk County that was due on February 12, 2009 and 2010 resulting.in

an amount due to Polk County of $348 772 related to this mstallment note.

. Management s response The C:ly and County are stlll in drscuss:ons over this expense

: Cntena Good mternal control over compllance with long term debt lssue related covenants
_ require tlmely monltonng of restnctlcns placed upon the Clty by their outstandlng iSSUES.

'Effect Matenal wolatlons of Ioan covenants could result in unfavorable market cred|t ratlngs an
accelerated repayments schedule or mcreased mterest rates ' -

Reoommendatlon We recommend the Clty enhance its: controls to ensure that monthly deposits
. into the reqwred sinking funds are made, requwed reserves are properly maintained and to take
appropriate action to increase rate coverage ratios as requwed We also recommend
- management take steps to rectify the violation of the Series 2005 Capital Improvement Revenue -
Notes related to the pledge of sewer impact fees and fo remedy the amounts past due related fo

the mstallment note with Polk County - .

 Finding 09-06: Cash Disbursements

Condition: Based upon our audit procedures, we noted- the following conditions where the
-'fmternal control procedures over cash: dlsbursements have not been adequately demgned or
were not operating properly. .
‘. Segregatlon of duties over the cash dlsbursement function have not been adequately
- developed and' implemented. The accounts payable clerk. has access to the vendor
master file and has the ability fo create purchase orders, enter invoices and print signed
_ checks with no required authorizations or compensating internal controls ‘
. Blank check stock is not adequately safeguarded.

.+ Blank checkstock does not- employ a “VOID™ pantograph that pnnts “VOID” oh any copy

of the check stock but is not wsrble on the check ltself : :

%
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CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA
- T.IN. 59-61 51760 .

. SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
for. the ear ended Se tember 30 2009

.Section I Financﬁal Sta‘teme‘nti Fi-n’dings (cont o)

'VFmdlng 09—06 Cash Dtsbursements (concluded)

Crlterla Adequate mterna! controls mcludlng segregatlon of duties, are requn'ed to be de5|gned
and |mplemented to provide reasonable assurance that cash - disbursements -are for valid -
‘. transactlons and are approved by management. : : : ‘

Effect: The: mternal controt deﬁclenCIes noted above could result i m material m:sstatements due to
errors or fraud which could remain. undetected by management -

Cause improper design of mternal oontro} over cash =dlsbursements

Recommendatron Management must design and |mpiement adequate internal controls over the

urchasmg and cash disbursement: transactlon cycle. The accounts payable clerk: should not have
the ability to create and modlfy vendor mformatlon without compensatlng internal controls. When a. -
facsimile signiature is utilized, the intemal. controls.over the ability to create checks as well as
~ internal control$ over the check stock become critical.- We recommend that’ management utitlze "
check stock with- a “VOID” pantograph and’ ‘when the blank check stock arrives, the package
‘should be examiried to ensure that is has not been tampered with and then immediately stored in
a secure iocatlon fo whlch only the authorizéd custodian has Access. :

Management S response: We concur and the check stock wrl! be reordered as requrred Other

cash disbursement will be rewewed for possible ‘changes. We wilt rewew the segregation of _

“duties.

Finding 09-67*- PayrolI' |

Condition:- Based upon our audlt procedures we noted the foIIowmg condltions where internal
contro! procedures over payroll processing and hurnan resources have not been adequately '
‘des:gned orwere not operating properly.

+ There was inadequate documentation in the empioyee personnel files to ‘suppert status
changes and pay rate increases makmg it difficult fo validate employees’ rate of pay.

« The City's contract with the City manager provides for a monthly vehicle allowarice of
$400 per month. We found the City was paying the City manager $200 a pay period.
rather than $400 per month. Thls would result in two extra payments of $200 over the
course of a calendar year.

e Salaried employees are not required to submlt any documentat:on substantratmg the
hours worked and are paid for a full work week unless the employee submits an
absentee form related to snck vacatlon or personal time used. ‘

Ctiteria: Adequate internal controls, including -segre‘gatlon of duttes, are required to be desig'rjed-
and implemented to. provide reasonable assurancé that payroll related transactions are properly
calculated and recorded, agree to authorized pay rates, supported by sufficient- documentation
and approved by management
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\CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA
T.I.N. 59:6151760 '

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
forthe year-ended September:30, 2009

Section II: Financial Statement Findings (cont..)
" Finding 09-07: Payroli (c oncluded)

_Effect The mternal control deficiencies noted above couid result in materlal mlsstatements due '
to errars or fraud which could remam undetected by management

Cause Improper deS|gn operatlon and momtonng of mternal controls over the payroll,
processmg and human resources function. ' - \

Recommendation: Management must design and |mplement adequate mternal controls Gver the
payroll processing transaction ¢ycle and the human resourcés function. Management should
. require alf employee:status Changes and pay rate increases to be documented in the individual -

‘employees’ personnel files and: signed by the City manager. and the employee. Employees
. -should not-be paid for vacation, sick or personal leave unless their.time is: supported by a leave
request form completed and SIgned by the emptcyee and their supervrsor

Managements response The error, related to the Crty manager vehicle -allowance occurred ‘
when the City moved from weekly to biweekly payroll We are not requrrmg salarred employees
fo submrt documentatron for edch pay perrod .

F‘inding‘09-0'8' Cdmp’uterAc‘cess C'ont'rols - : ,' L

Condztlon We noted severai mstances of computer passwords posted on an. employees .
computer

Cntena Proper internal control over. computer access reqwres users fo be asmgned an
independent user namé and unique password that is too safeguarded by the emp!oyee
Furthérrriore, passwords should be changed on a regular baS|s ' s

Effect Wlthout adequate computer access contrgls over the computer system, unauthorized
changes could be made mcreaslng the risk of errors or other imegularities occumng without
detection.

Cause: Inadequately ‘moni-toring of the inte-malr control over computer access.
Recommendatlon All active users of the computer system should be a53|gned unigue passwords‘
and management should remind employees of the importance of keeping therr passwords secure

and instruct them. to remove visible postings of thelr passwords

Management’s Response: We concur and we have removed access to computer passwords.
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CITY OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA
T.LN. 59:6151760 '

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
forthe year ended September 30, 2009 '

: Section Iil: Fi'ndings'Related‘ to i'—'edera-l Air.rards

; .Fmdlng 09-09 Trmely Filing of Federal Smgle Audrt

Condition: The Clty dld not file their compteted singe audit report for the year ended September
30, 2009, w1th|n the requxred 9 months from year-end. ‘

Crlterla Pursuant to Section 320 OMB Crrcu!ar A-133 Audrts of States Local Governments

and ‘Non-Profit Organ.rzatrons the City is reqmred to submlt a comp!eted smgle audlt report S

within ning months after the ‘end of ifs fiscal year.

~ Cause: For the year ‘ended September 30, 2009 the accountmg records were. not c!osed in time
- for tlmely fi Img of the srngle audit reports

Eftect Fallure to comply w:th the reportmg requrrements could result in a reductlon or Ioss of
Federal funds - ; : .

Recommendatlon We recommend that Clty staff take measures to ensure that the smgle audit '
mfonnatron is-compiled and audited W|th|n the reqmred time frame :

Managements response We concur and this wr!l be resoived inFY'1 0 The audrts are now
current. ‘

ht

Sectlon IV Fmdmg Refated to State Awards

) Fmdmg 09-10 Florida Department of Enwronmental Protectron )
CFSA# 37. 039 Polk Clty Wastewater Treatment System — Phase |

Condltlon Last year we noted that in November 2007 the City appt;ed for and received
advance funding in the amount of $1,250,000. The City deposited the funds into an interest
beanng account but did ot ‘reit the interest earried to the Department as requwed by the
agreement The City made one payment to the Department seven months after the initial
dep03|t Based upon our review of the bank account detail, the' City remitted approximately
$5,570 less than the amount eamed on the advance funding. During our current aud;t we noted
" that the $5, 570 has not been remitted to the Department

Criteria; Pursuant to the State Flnanmal Assistance Agreement LP6855 between the City of Polk.
City and the State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection (the “Department”) dated
July 20, 2007, the Departmient may provide an advance 1o the City of Polk City. Such advance
must be temporarily invested and any mterest earned on the advance funds must be returned to
. the Department quarterly
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CITY OF POLK CITY FLORIDA
T.LN, 59-6151760 ‘

~ SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUES‘F!ONED COSTS
- for the year ended September 30, 2009 ‘ o

Sectlon IV Fmdmgs Related to State Award

_ ‘Flndmg 09- 10 Florida Department of Envrronmental Protectlon
CFSA# 37.039: Polk C:ty Wastewater Treatment System — Phase i (concluded) '

: Cause Interest earned on the advance fundlng was not remitted to the Department in
accordance with the agreement t »

Effect: Failure to comply with the reportmg reqwrements could result’in a reductlon or loss of
State funds. ‘ ‘

Recommendatlon We recommend ‘management review the Crtys internal control aver state
financial assistance to ensure - adequacy of controls and to contact the Department to discuss
-payment optlons for the $5.570. .

Managements response We be!reve that this amount has been forgrven and further research s .
belng done - 4

, Se'c"ti'on: Ve summaky'schédul'e of Prior Au&-‘it-Findinds

Fmdmg reference: 08-02: Restricted Cash Monitoring Needs Improvement
. Comrment: See current year finding 09-02 - ,

Flndlng reference: 08-03: Bank Reconcmatlon Procedures Needs Improvement -
Comment This has been corrected as of May 2010 :

"Fmdlng refererice; 08- 04 General Ledger Not Bemg Malntasned Current -
Comment: This has been corrected .

Fmdmg reference; 08-05: Failure to Correct Interna! Control Deficiencies
Comment See current year fi ndmg 09-04

Flndlng reference: 08-06; Greater Segregatlon of Dutles Qver Cash Dlsbursements is Deswable
Comment: Thig has been corrected. . .

Flndlng reference: 08-12: Timely fi Ilng of Srngie Audit.
Comment: See current year finding 09-10

Finding reference: 08-13: T‘ime‘ly- filing of St’ate Single Audit
Comment: This has been corrected - ,

Fi'ndihg reference: 08-14: Florida Department of Environmental Prot_ection
Comment: See current year finding 09-11 -
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